Coalition For The Protection Of Asylum Seekers

An interfaith coalition to protect asyhum seekers with a well founded fear of persecution.

The Senate
Parliament House
Canberra ACT 2600
AUNTRALIA

2 November, 2003

Alistair Sands
Secretary

Ministerial Discretion in Migration Matters - Select Committee
Attention : Peta Leeman
Dear Mr Sands

Please find enclosed additional information | have collected in response to Senator Humphries’
guestions during the hearing | attended on 22 October, 2003.

Although I did not relish the extra work, the experiences of former RRT members do provide further
evidence of the claims of Bruce Haigh and the concerns of the Coalition for the Protection of
Asvium Seekers. Some members of the Coalition's network have also offered information.

The Coalition proposes that one of the Senate Select Commuittee's recommendations be that the
Senate establish a similar inquiry into the impact of Ministerial and Departmental influence and
intervention on the decisions of the RR'T. Meanwhile, the Coalition will canvass its membership
whether, in the light of the information that the RRT is influenced by the Mimster and Department,
the power of full judicial review be restored to the Courts or, more importantly, to a specialist
Refugee and Humanitarian Court. Clearly the RRT should be reformed. There should be three
Tribunal Members at a hearing for instance, and the discussion and recommendations of the Senate
Legal and Constitutional References Report “Sanctuary under Review (June 2000} should be

implemented as a matter of urgency.

Yours sincerely
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Frances Milne
Convenor of Working Group
Coalition for the Protection of Asylum Seckers

* When times are bad, good peopie must do more good, so justice does not die”.
- Afghanistan - Where God only Comes to Weep, by Siba Shakib.
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Bruce Haigh

On 23 October, 2003, | spoke by telephone with Bruce Haigh, who lives on a property outside Mudgee, to
redress Senator Humphries' concerns that I had not met and did not know anything about Bruce Haigh’s life.

Bruce Haigh talked very openly about his experience as both a full time and part-time member of the RRT,
and indicated he was still a Member of the RRT in 2000. Prior to his RRT experience, he had been a Diplomat
in Pakistan, Afghanistan, the Gulf states including Yemen, Iran, Saudi Arabia, Sri Lanka and South Africa.

Bruce Haigh explained that the influence of the Minister was subtle, but there was an unwritten consensus
among RR'T Members that only about 20 % of applicants should be found to be refugees. This unwritten rule
was further validated when any member whose record of approvals for refugee visas climbed to around 35%,
would be ‘counselled’ by the Principal Member or senior Members about the way they made their decisions.

Bruce Haigh refused to comply with this absurd 20% rule of thumb and in late 1996 or 1997 when his own
approvals were much higher, the Principal Member Shun Chetty, drew him aside and went through Bruce
Haigh’s decisions arguing against the evidence which supported the applicant’s claim to be a refugee. Bruce
argued back that this was only Shun Chetty’s opinion and he had no intention of changing the way he assessed
applications, He also pointed out to Shun Cheity that he had far fewer appeals from those cases he did not
approve to the Courts, and very few of his decisions overturned in the Courts compared with other RRT
Members who kept the 20% rule.

At meetings within the RRT Chetty would indicate to members the Minister’s thinking on issues, such as the
set aside rate and government policy in relation to the processing of East Timorese refugees.

Dr Peter Nyghe the following Principal Member would also pass on the Minister’s thoughts and perceptions
as to the framework which the RRT ought to be operating.

When | asked him what was the response of the RRT Members when Courts did overturn their decisions, he
said that the RRT Members took note of every court appeal, and when their cases were overturned their
response was that courts were wiong,

Bruce had known Shun Chetty as Diplomat in South Africa whom he helped out of South Africa. Sadly,
however, he saw him change under pressure to conform to the RRT culture of compliance to government
expectations that the RRT should not be a backdoor to onshore claims for protection. Bruce Haigh noticed this
same change in other independent thinkers and human rights advocates once they became RRT members. He
observed the insidious way these highly paid RRT Members became trapped by their mortgages and standards
of living, so that they gradually complied with the culture of rejecting most refugee claims. In 1999 RRT
Members positions became more tenuous with 2 an 3 year contracts subject to review by the Minister and
Cabinet. Many part-time members have now been appointed. Those who do not meet expectations do not get
cases, and the expectation is that they will leave the RRT.

Bruce Haigh also mentioned that any RRT Member that did not use DFAT Country Reports to at least
balance the Amnesty International or other Human Rights reports, would have that matter drawn to their
attention. RRT Members read each other’s reports so there was no chance of remaining unnoticed if the
protocols were not observed. Bruce Haigh noted that not all RRT members have succumbed to this pressure,
which means that the RRT is of variable quality in terms of decision making. He also noted that many RRT
members have no direct experience of the countries which they deal with.

Eventually in 2000 Bruce Haigh’s application for re-appointment to the RRT was not approved by the
Minister.




Dr Lyn Fong

Dr Lyn Fong was appointed as a Member to the RRT from 1993 when it was first established, to
1997. Dr Fong had been a medical practitioner who, prior to joining the RRT, had worked in the
Attorney-General’s (A-G) Department on Refugee Status Review Committee (RSRC), the forerunner
to the RRT and other projects including the blueprint for the establishment and operations of the RRT.

However, even prior to its establishment in 1993, how to make the RRT an independent body was
always a difficult issue. Dr Fong was of the view that while the RRT was positioned in the
Immigration Portfolio, she could not be confident that that the RRT could ever be entirely
independent of the influence of the Minister and Immigration Department. The task of the A-G's
Department was to decide how to make the RRT as independent as possible within these structural
limitations. One issue was the suggestion was that Tribunal Members should only serve one term of
office to prevent members seeking to ingratiate themselves to the Minister for Immigration to attain
re-appointment. In hindsight Dr Fong would have more vigorously supported that proposal.

Dr Fong said that she was never aware of any direct Ministerial intervention in the way Members
made their decisions especially under the first Principal RRT Member, Leroy Certoma. In fact, she
said that although she and other Members felt that the first Principal Member showed a lack of
leadership to the Members, that in hindsight this may bave been preferable to the more directive style
of a later Principal Member, Mr Shun Chetty. Mr Chetty seemed very willing to serve the
Immigration Minister by interfering in the conduct of cases related to East Timorese refugee
applicants. Members dealing with these cases were instructed to put decisions 'on hold’ in 1997
pending a political resolution to the East Timor situation. Dr Fong observed that Mr Certoma's tack of
influence on the decisions of the RRT Members was unpopular with the Minister and Mr Certoma
stepped down from the position when it was made clear that he did not have the support of the
Minister.

During her term of office at the RRT. Dr Fong remained concerned that the RRT was operating too
closely with the Immigration Department and its Minister. She witnessed the development of a group
mentality among the RRT Members who were desirous of re-appointment to the RRT. Members were
very aware that the Minister had the power to hire and fire, and the reality was, Dr Fong explained,
that for a lot of Members this job was their future, and they were unlikely to find another job with
equivalent status and salary. She believes that the low rate of successtul refugee applications coming
before the RRT is in part because of the pressures upon Tribunal Members to make decisions
rejecting refugee applicants that would make themn popular with the fmmigration Mirmister,

Dr Fong also commented on the acceptance of 'country’ information collected by the Department of
Immigration & Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs (DIMIA) and the Department of Foreign Affairs
as fact based evidence. The degree to which such material reflected the Departments and
Government's own prejudices was generally ignored by Members. For example, the official
government line about countries like Cambodia, Afghanistan, Iraq and the former Yugoslavia is that
subsequent to war, these countries became politically stable and it is safe for refugees to return when
in reality these countries remain extremely unsafe, and have unstable government, judicial and
security structures in operation to protect returned refugees. Unfortunately for asylum seckrs and
people on Temporary Protection Visas from these countries, Australia’s has a policital vested interest
in portraying the regime changes it helped to negotiate to be 'successes' . The country evidence
provided by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade portrayed these countries as 'safe’ to further
successful trade and diplomatic relations with these 'new' nations and does not provide a balanced
view of safety issues for returning refugees.




Dr Fong was disappointed that the RRT relied so heavily on governmental sources for information
and did not have the will, or the resources, to obtain current independent country information from
NGO aid agencies ke Community Aid Abroad, Oxfam etc who could provide valuable insights into
real state of affairs in those situations. The RRT was armed with governmental sourced information
and public domain information while refugee applicants, with little financial capacity, were expected
to be able to refute those sources. To achieve a more balanced and fairer hearing, Dr Fong's believes
that the applicants should have access to a a well-resourced 'public defender’ organisation to help
bring vital current country information to the Tribunal's deliberations and it is essential that the
immigration Minister be denied the position of Big Brother' over the Tribunal's operations.

Dr Fong concluded that the current structure and positioning of the RR'T within the framework of the
Immigration Portfolio will always predispose the RRT to Ministerial influence on the decision making

of its Members.




Dr Ken Chan

Dr Ken Chan was a career diplomat from 1972-1993, and thern was appointed o Member of the RRT between
1993 — 1997 Fe provided me with the information below plus the attached copy of a statement he made to the
Senate Stunding Committee on Foreign Affuirs, Defence and Trade on 24.3.99.

Page 190 of the statement is evidence of Ministerial intervention in the processing of the East Timorese
asylum seekers in 1997, Dr Chan also observed that the two structures which are responsible for the
primary and review stages of the refugee determination process are both located under the Minister for
Immigration's portfolio and this systemically mitigates against the RRT operating as an independent review
body. The primary decision maker is a Department of Trmigration Officer ultimately answerable to the
Minister, and RR'T members are very aware that their appointment and re-appointment are subject to the
Minister’s decision.

No credible ¢laim to conduct independent reviews can be made by a Tribunal which is in the portfolio of the
same Minister who is responsible for making and implementing the policies and legislation concerning the
treatment and assessment of on-shore asylum seekers.

As well, the RRT relied on information and rescarch that came from the Department of Immigration and from
Foreign Affairs in regard to political and social issues on various countries. Thus, these Departments were
able to feed information to RRT members making decisions. I'm: not arguing that this always created a bias
but it had potential to shape the assessment of members when they conducted hearings and wrote decisions.

A genuinely independent process would have seen such sources of information kept at arms length.
Furthermore, in the period that T worked in the RRT there were a large number of research/support staff who
were previously connected to Immigration, having worked there for some time before transferring to the RRT
when it was set up, In my opinion that also detracted from independence of the RRT.

Finally, a comment on the role of Principal Member. He/she must always ensure the integrity of the RRT's
independence and defend the Tribunal from pressures whether from ministerial officers or the Minister
himseif. The current set-up and the lines of authority make it too easy for staff in Ministerial offices to pick up
the phone and speak directly with the Principal Member of the RRT claiming, when they do so, to speak for
the Minister for limmigration.

Ken Chan

Inserted here : Submission to Senate Standing Committee on East Timor -hard copy in mail.
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24 March 1599

Senator John Hogg (Chair)

Senate Foreign Affairs, Defence and Trade Reference Committed”

L
Parliament House
Canberra

Dear Senator Hogg,

Attached is the submission | have written on the Inguiry into East Timor. I have
addressed the terms of reference as released by the Committee.

1 was a career dipiomat with the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade from 1972-
1593, In September 1993, 1 took leave from the Department and began working as a full-
time member of the Refugee Review Tribunal in Sydney. I {inished my term with the
Tribunal in June 1997, Scon after, I retired from Foreign Affairs.

During my career with Foreign Affairs 1 served three years {1979-82) in the Permanent
Mission of Australia to the UN, New York. My work covered decolonization issues,

inciuding the guestion of East Timer,

As a member of the Refugee Review Tribunal I dealt with a large number of indonesian
applicants, among whom were some from East Timor.

I can be contacted on 62397573 should the Committee wish to seek any further
information.

Yours sincerely,

et (G

(Kenneth Chan)
PO Box 2909

Manuka
ACT 2603
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Submission of Dr Kenneth Chan

[a] Economie, social and political conditions in East Timor including respect for
human rights in the territory

The recent history of East Tirmor and its people is a history of turbulence, denial,
bloodshed and betrayal. The Indonestan invasion and occupation in 1975/76 set in place
a regime that has produced 23 years of subjugation that have denied the people of East
Timor a say in their own future, a voice for their own aspirations, and the opportunity to
create a meaningful country for themselves free of the oppressive presence of Indonesian
military forces.

The presence of the Indonesian miiitary, its offensive against the East Timorese, and its
harsh treatment of the people of the territory has created an atmosphere of fear,
resentment and distrust. Yet the military has been acting on orders: it has been the
government in Jakarta that has driven a process that has made a mockery of any claims
that its raison d’étre for initially occupying East Timor was to re-establish order and to
put an end to “the fratricidal struggle among the inhabitants of Timor.” (UN Department
of Political Affairs, Trusteeship and Decolonization, Issue On East Timor, No 7, August
1976, pp 49-50). Ifthese claims had any semblance of truth Indenesia would have
withdrawn its military forces once the “chacs” had ended. Instead the heavy hand of the
Suharto regime has imposed itself on East Timor for two decades with consequences that
have been devastating for the people of the territory.

The many acts of atrocity commisted in East Timor by the regime include arbitrary
arrests, kiflings, torfure, and rape as instruments of repression and control. These have
been weil-documented, not ieast by Indonesian men and women of courage who have
dared to take a stand against the forcible occupation of East Timer and who have called
for & genuine process of self-determination for the people living there. There have been
outside voices which have tried to keep international attention focussed on the struggles
of the East Timorese for freedom and independence and have highlighted the mounting
Hst of brutal acts perpetrated by the Indonesian regime. Amnesty International has
reported regularly on the repressive policies that have been applied in East Tunor, and the
Indenesian scholar, George Aditiondrs has disclosed the appalling record of the
Indonesian government in a number of published studies such as Violence by the Siate
Against Women in East Timor (East Timor Human Rights Centre, 1997) and In the
Shadow of Mount Ramelau (INDOC, Leiden, 1554).

The Indonesian regime has, at tirmes, made much of its claim to have injected substantial
amounts of funds into the territory but as Miranda Sissons has pointed out the levels of
education in East Timor, are very low, especially among women. About two thirds of
aduit women and half of adult men have never attended any school. (From One Day to
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Another: Violations of Women s Reproductive and Sexual Rights in East Timor, Bast
Timor Human Rights Center, 1997). This, even allowing for the impact of the indifferent
adrninistrative record of Portugal in the years before the Indonesian invasjon, is a
damning comment on the so-called assistance that Indanesia has provided to East Timor.

Moreover, as Louise Williams stated in a recent article, the patterns of employment

" favour the outsiders, not the East Timorese. And this is in 2 territory where there is
severe unemployment. A considerable part of the public service is “dominated by non-
East Timorese appointed by Jakarta.” This is especiaily the case in teaching and health,

The commercial sector is largely run by outsiders. (The Sydney Morning Herald, January
30,1699, p 31}

What ihis reflects is a record of failure in development, an unwillingness to provide
opportunities for the East Timorese {o be educated and to have Jjobs. The fact that
outsiders to the territory have held down many of the public sector positions and have run
commerce has fuelled resentment and created tensions,

[b] Indonesia’s military presence in East Timor and reports of ongoing conflict in the
territory

The record of the Indonesian military has been so horrific that only a complete
withdrawal of that presence from East Timor would demonstrate that the current
govemment, under President Habibie, was completely genuine about its intentions to quit
East Timor. Reports that right-wing pro-Indonesian elements have formed a group
known as Alive or Dead with Indonesia and that it has been provided with arms by the

Indonesian military indicate that the armed forces will continue to try to manipulate the
situation in the territory.

The fears of some observers in Fast Timor that the territory may be prone to viclence and
struggle between pro-independence groups and pro-Indonesian ones is a very real one
given the machinations of the military. One journalist has referred to attempis by the
military to orchestrate “a regime of brutal chaos.” He quotes comments by Manuel
Carascalao that the Indonesians “have always said that if they leave East Timor, there
wiil be bloodshed. Now they want to ensure that is true” and by Florentino Sarmento that
the armed forces (ABRI) “are insti gating unrest, not only here but all across the
archipelago.” (Dennis Schulz, “Reign of Terror,” The Builetin, February 16, 1999),

1n other words, while official pronouncements from Habibie and Foreign Minister Ali
Alatas have suggested that Indonesia is willing to move to a reasonable resoiuticn of the
East Timor problem, the actions of the military on the ground have created a scenario that
is quite disturbing. In the second half of 1998, the military armed hundreds of Timorese
civilians into paid, pro-Jakarta militia units that now terrorise many parts of East Timor.
These recruits are mostly “hored young men, disenfranchised by unemployment and
poverty and empowered by guns.” (Louise Willizms, op cit.). What has been fomented is
the prospect of a civil war in an independent East Timor. The Indonesian government,
through its military, is trying to orchestrate the outcome on East Timor's future status in
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path, according to the wishes of the East Timorese.

[c] The prospects for a just and lasting settlement of the East Timor conflict

The United Nations, a much-maligned body, has, throughout the 23 years of Indonesian
oceupation, stood by the resolutions adopted by the General Assembly on 12 December
1873 (Resolution 3483 {(XXX), Questicn of East Timer) and those adopted by the
Security Council on 22 December 1975 and 22 April 1976 (Resolutions 384 and 389).
What this has meant is that the international community, as reflected in the General
Assembly resolution, has supported the following:

B A strong condemnation of the military intervention of the armed forces of
indenssia in Portuguese Timor

i) The call for the withdrawal, without delay, of Indonesia’s armed forces from the
territory in order to enable the people of the territory to exercise their right to self-
determination and independence

ii} The appeal to all parties in Portaguese Timor to respond positively to efforts to
find a peaceful solution through talks between them and the Government of
Portugal in the hope that such talks with end the strife and lead to the orderly
exercise of the right of self-determination by the people of Portuguess Timor

ivy Drawing the attention of the Security Council to the critical situation in the
territory and recommending that it take urgent action to protect the territorial
integrity of Portuguese Timor and the inalienable right of its people o self-
determination.

The Security Council resolutions confirm the principles that the General Assembly
adopted and propose that:

)} The Secretary-General urgently send a special representative fo East Timor to
make an on-the-spot assessment of the existing situation and establish contact
with all the parties in the territory and all states concemned in order to ensure the
implementation of resolution 384

it} The Secretary-General, in pursuing the implementation of resolution 384, submit
recommendations to the Security Council as soon as possible

iify  All states and other parties concerned co-operate fully with the UN to achieve a
peaceful solution to the existing situation and to facilitate the decolonization of
the territory.

Despite the passage of two decades, these points, grounded firmly in the Charter of the
UN and the principles of international law, remain relevant to the situation in East Timor.




They provide a just base from which the building blocks of a fair outcome for the East
Timorese can be erected, For what the UN has stood by for two decades is the
denouncement of Indonesia’s forced occupation of East Timor. What it is advocating is
the withdrawal of those forces and a genuine act of self-determination for the East
Timorese within the framework of the UN Charter and the Declaration on the Granting of
Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples as set out in resolution 1514 (XViofi4
December 1967,

General Assembly resolution 3485 considers Portugal to be cne of the key players in the
steps towards the act of self-determination. The link 3485 makes to the Security Couneii
{and the subsequent Council resolutions that were adopted) provide the Secretary-General
with the authority to assess the report of his special representative and to submit
recommendations on what should be done.

Seen from this perspective, the proposals for some structure of autonomy to be put in
place in East Timor can only have validity if that is the wish of the people of the
Territory. It cannot be a proposal that is impused or contains elements that have nat been
fairly put to and endorsed by the pecple of East Timor, And to have something fairly put
to the people means that points are laid out fairty; that there is a genuine educaticnal
process involved so that the people have been fally informed before making their choices.

Beyond this, there has to be a time-table for a proper referendum on the status of the
territary, conducted under UN supervision and observation. Having a time-table is
critical because it will underline the fact that autonomy is only a half-way house to a fair
and just resolution of the problem of East Timor's status. Autonomy would be seen, in
this way, as a step along the path to self-determination for the people of the territory, not
as a temporary measure that could become permanently entrenched.

It needs to be emphasised that there has to be a strong measure of good-will and
determination on all sides if the UN is to play its part in a just cutcome. The UN can
only be a strong player if it is equipped, by its member states, with the roeans to be so. If
Indonesia continues to play a spoiling game; if members of the UN speak strong words
but sit on their hands when it comes to providing concrete support; if Fretilin, despairing
of the international process, withdraws its voice, then a just settlement will not be
possibie,

It is important that Indonesia be given recognition for unblocking the process that has,
until now, prevented the UN and sther states, from any movement on an international
respiution of the East Timor issue. The fact is that the UN resolutions lay almest
dormant for two decades, oceasionally being dusted off when the Secretary-General tried
to kick-start the self-determination process. But without Indonesia’s co-operation very
little was achieved. In the current situation, Indonesia’s co-operation remains important
to the negotiations on a just settiement. But it has to be & co-operation that fits within the
framework of the above-mentioned UN and Security Council reselutions. A co-operation
that accepts and abides by the principles of international law,
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There is another dimension of a Just settlement in East Timor which needs to be
mentioned and that is the processes by which the people of the territory can give voice to
the pain, suffering, and brutalities that were heaped on them for 23 years. The idea ofa
Truth Commission, of which the most notable recent example hag beer that of South
Africe, has an Orwellian ring to it. The victims, as it were, turning on thelr inquisitors and
exacting their pound of flesh. The point is that the history of the East Timorese has been
largely silenced, the struggle they have gone through has been presented piece-meal and
in distorted form, the atrocities have only been partially uncovered and, at every tum,
Justice for the victims has been elusive or ignored.

Vet atrocities must be exposed to hold up to the Indonesian state and to the international
community the enormity of the horror. If the mistakes of past policy are to remain
unvoiced then the danger will be that they will be repeated at a future date.

Whether there can be any compensation for the victims is hard to answer. Govemments
are notorious for disavowing past wrongs for fear that acknowledgement might create an
example for the future, But a true measure of justice would include compensation for the
people of East Timor, for the many families that have suffered at the hands of a
repressive regime.

There has besn much commentary about the fragile economic quality of the territory and
this cannot be denied. It is fragile, it has a number of social and economic problems,
some of which have been noted under heading {(a) above. And this has been used by
some commentators as an argument for Fast Timor to contime to remain under
Indonesian control. The talk shout autonemy s subsumed into this argument: let the
people of East Timor have some measure of “freedom” provided the territory stays
within the Indonesian fold. Such argurnents are really a mask for those who remain
opposed, for whatever reasons, to a genuine act of seif-determination for the people of
East Timer.

tf economic weakness and underdevelopment were the criteria for rejecting the right to
independence then a large number of smali states which currently exist (many of these
are in the Pacific region) should never have become independent. To use such criteria as
fow income levels, a small population, tack of natural resources, and a fragile economic
structure as measures of a state’s right to be independent is to confuse economics with
politics. East Timor will be dependent on cutside aid, on the support of bodies like
Community Aid Abroad, on outside technical experts and teachers for many years. But
none of this is an argument against its right to have a free and fair choice on its ultimate
political stamus. If the international community, and that includes countries like Australia
and the US, is prepared to assist the East Timorese then a lasting settlement can be
achieved. rd

[dl  Australia’s humanitarian and development assistance in East Timor

There is a climate of international support for East Timor’s transition to independence
which means that Australia can expect that any development aid it provides will only be
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part of a much larger package. The press has reported Mr Ramos Horta as saying that’
Portugal has promised up to USS$ 300 million to assist the financing of a transitional
authority and that this would be augmented by aid pledges from private companies and
organisations. He added that other Western nations were willing to help financially. (The
Canberra Times, February 20, 1999). No details were provided of the Portuguese offer
but the implication of the report is that funds will be forthcoming, on a generous level.

Australian Foreign Minister Downer has been reported as saying that Australia was
prepared to give generous assistance to East Timor but has not elaborated on this. (The
Canberra Times, February 25, 1999). In its 1997-98 Annual Report, the Department of
Foreign Affairs and Trade said that its country assistance programme to Indonesia was

$ 80.4 million, although this included help in response to the drought and financial crisis
in Indonesia. But there was 1o precise breakdown of what was provided to Fast Timor
and how funds were earmarked for specific programmes. The point is that whatever the
level of assistance will be in the future, the Australian government should be sefting up
programmes in close consultation with the leaders and the people of East Timor without
having to seek the imprimatur of Jakarta for what is decided, The move toward the act of
self-determination for Eest Timor needs to take account of the right of the East Timorese
to state what their priorities in development aid and humanitarian assistance. This should
underline the Australian approach,

[el The Timer Gap (Zene of Cooperation Treaty)

Writing on Australia’s negotiation of the Timor Gap Treaty, the then Foreign Minister
Gareth Evans and Bruce Grant stated that it represented the most “substantial
achievement” in the efforts of Australia and Indonesia to search for “practical outcomes”
in their relationship. They noted the “imaginative sclution’ that enabled the two
countries to put aside their differences and reach an agreement that they say, somewhat
proudly, was signed in December 1989 “in an aircraft ceremony above the Timor Sea.”
{Gareth Evans and Bruce Grant, Auspralia's Foreign Relations in the World of the 1990s,
(Meloourne University Press, 1993), p 188). '

The practical outcome of the Treaty, however, was predicated on two acts. One was the
nvasion and occupation of East Timor which led, in the end, to the deaths of 200,000
people in the territory. The other was the decision of the Fraser government to accord de
Jure recognition in February 1979 to Indonesia’s forced incorporation of East Timor. A
decision which the successor governments, under Prime Ministers Hawke and Keating
did not repudiate. In other words, the Treaty, however “imaginative” its legal and
technical solutions may have been, was a further assertion to the world that East Timor
belonged to Indonesia, Australia’s assent to this Treaty confirmed the Labor
government's view in 1991 that there was no tuming back the clock on the issue of Fast
Timor’s status. The interests of the people of East Timor were not countenanced in this
Treaty: the negotiations that took place were between Indonesian and Australian
Ministers and officials,
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But if the fact of Indonesia’s incorporation is now under more concerted scrutiny and
challenge and if, in the end, the people of East Timor choose independence over
autonomy, then the status of the Treaty can also be questioned. At the very least, the
Treaty would need to be declared void and a new one negotiated with the representatives
of Bast Timor. To act otherwise, even to pass the revenues from the successful
expioration of oil in the Timor Sea to the people of the territory, would be to recognise
any continuing Indonesian claim to a decisive say in the exploration process and in what
happens to the revenues from the oil.

{1 Past and present Australian government policy toward East Timor including the
issue of East Timorese self-determination

The furore in the past few months ignited by Laurie Bereton’s speech on East Timor in
which he challenged the orthodoxy adhered to by successive Labor and Liberal
governments has only served to confirm how entrenched was the official view that the
issue of self-determination for the East Timorese should be allowed to remain buried.

Ir attacking his own Party and its leaders for both their past sins of omission and
commission the Bereton speech was merely pointing out that they, too, had chosen to put
pragmatism abead of principle. Casting our minds back to the events of 1974-75, the
interesting point about the Whitlam letter t¢ Suharto of 28 February 1975, which wag
published in the press in early March this vear, is that it sets out, very clearly, the support
for the principle of self-determination and the opposition in Australia to “any suggestion
of a possible resort to unilateral action,” The letter stresses this point to Suharto stating
that “you wilt understand that no Australian Government could allow it to be thought,
whether beforehand or afterwards, that it supported such action.” In reaffirming that the
two leaders had agreed, in September 1974, that the preferred solution was that the
territory should become part of Indonesia, the letter says that *this outcome wounld need
to result from the properly expressed wishes of its peopie.” (The Canberra Times, March
6, 199%).

This championing of the principle of self-determination, however, does have a false ring
to it because the main thrust of the letter accepts Indonesia’s right to step in and take dver
the territory though not by force. There is no hint of a challenge to that right; no
suggestion that some alternative arrangement for settling the problems in East Timor
might be countenanced that would exclude a major role for Indonesia; no
acknowledgment that the choices available to the people of Eest Timor were wider than
incorporation into Indonesia. By early 1973, the Whitlam government had accepted,
some might say embraced, a significant voice for Indonesia in determining what
happened in East Timor.

As Jim Dunn makes clear in his probing and meticuious analysis, this did not have to be
the case. There were other options. At the time, the Portuguese envay, Dr Almeida
Santos, proposed that a UN good offices committes be sent to the territory but this was
not accepted by Australia. Yet Dunn states that a UN good offices committee “could
have functioned very effectively.” But such a committes would have “presented an




ahstacle to Jakarta's plans to integrate the territory,” (Timor: 4 FPeople Betrayed,
(Jacaranda, 1983}, p 191).

When events in East Timor reached a critical phase in October 1875, the Australian
govemment, notwithstanding its outline of the principles set out in the Whitlam letter,

chose to take a muted and pliant approach to the Indonesian military activity that it knew,

from intelligence sources, was taking place on the ground in East Timor. Australian was
fulty aware that the Indonesian wilitary was involved in East Timor during October.
(Paui Keily, “Willesee: Whitlam reigned on Fast Timer,” The Australian, March 10,
1999). A UN report on East Timor in August 1976 noted that:

--.Teports began to circulate of armed clashes on the border between Portuguese
and Indonesian Timor, These clashes became increasingly serious by mid-
October when full-scale fighting took place on the border town of Batugade
leading to FRETILIN's withdrawal from the town, FRETILIN charged that the
UDT/APODETI forces operating from Indonesian Timor were being assisted by
Indonesian troops and that Inconesian air and naval craft were involved in the
fighting. These claims were confirmed by the Australian observers who visited
"Timer during this period and appear to have been increasin gly accepted as
accurate by foreign news media as time wore on and armed clashes grew in
intensity. (UN Department of Political Affairs, Trusteeship and Decolonization,
Issue On East Timor, No 7, August 1976, pp 26-7). )

The UM drew on publicly available material to compile its report so that the Australian
govermument could hardly pretend that Indonesian was not intervening on the ground in
East Timor. Yet the statement of the then Foreign Minister Don Willesee on 30 Octoher
1975 was a relatively mild rebuke to the Indonesian government.

In reviewing his approach some 24 years later, Willesee said that he believed in self-
determination but there was no doubt that Whitlam took a different view: “Gough felt
East Timor should be incorporated within Indonesia, 1 just believed that we should have
left the decision to the East Timorese, without any suggestions or trying to lead them to
Indonesia, That was the difference between myself and Gough.” Paul Kelly quotes from
an article by Professor Viviani which argues that Wiilesee held back fror: making a
stronger public statement on Indonesian actions because he knew that Whitlam would
resist for fear of precipitating a breach in relations with Indonesia and because the
Department of Foreign Affairs was advising that it was impolitic to confirm reports of
Indonesian military involvement when the Indonesians were busy denying such reports.
(Paul Kelly, op cit.},

The above is worth setting out in some detail because it demonstrates that Australia
conceded the game to Indonesia at a very early stage. It also reflects the prevailing
tendency in Australia's policy in the past two decades to hone its responses to Indenesian
actions in East Timor in ways that would cause least offence, The comments in the
Evans and Grant book encapsulate the fundamental approach of both Labor and Liberal
governmenis since the Indonesian invasion and occupation:
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There was little or nothing any Australian government couid have done at the
tims to limit or reverse the annexation, and successive Australian governments
since, conswious of international realities, have accepted its irreversibility, with de
Jure recognition being given in F ebruary 1979. They have concentrated efforts,
rather, on pressuring the Indonesian government fo improve the situation of the
East Timorese people, pressing for economic development and proper attention to
human rights. But that has not stopped the issue of East Timor — and the activities
of expatriate Bast Timorese in Australia - being a recurring irritant. (Evans and
Grant, op ¢it. p 187).

It is the last sentence of this quotaticn that underscores the policy of successive
Australian governments; the implication that East Timor is small beer; that the rights of
the East Timorese can somehow be properly protected by the occupying power; that
without the stirrings of the expatriate East Timorese in this country the problem would
bardly exist. There is no suggestion that there are fundamental issues that have to he
confronted: the denial to the East Timorese of any political voice in their future; the
demand that the Indonesian military withdraw from the territory completely; the fact that
the international community, through the UN, does not consider that the issue of East
Timor has bsen resolved.

One strand in this policy on East Timor has been the desire to cause least offence to
Indonesia. I had personal awareness of this when I worked as a member of the Refugee
Review Tribunal in Sydney from 1993.97. Among the cases the Tribunal had to deal
with were applications from East Timorese who had escaped from Indonesia and had
sought refugee status in Australia, In the process of working through a couple of these
cases, two of my colleagues looked carefully at the question of nationality.

They raised the issue that the East Timorese might have both an Indonesian naticnality
(following the Indonesian occupation) and a Portuguese naticnality (because Portugal had
not ceded its claim to be the administering power — 3 claim supported in both UN General
Assembly resolution 3485 and Security Council resolutions 384 and 38%). These issues
were taken up by several government departments, including the Department of
Immigration and Attorney-General’s and a number of academics.

The question of Portuguese nationality was a difficult and complex one and, in the search
for an expert opinion, my colleagues sought advice from 2 Portuguese academic and
lawyer who was based in Lishon. But even before these questions were properly
resolved, the Keating government made public assertions that East Timoress applicants in
this country were Portuguese nationals and could £0o to Portugal if they did not wish to
return to Indonesia. ! thought that these assertions reflected disdain for the rights of the
East Timorese, They were cynical in that the Australian government, in its arguments to
the International Court of Justice when Portugal challenged the validity of the Timor Gap
Treaty, asserted that Portugal bad no claims on East Timor or its resources since it had
abandoned the territory in 1975, Thus Portugal had no connection to East Timor any
longer yet, for the purposes of dealing with East Timorese in Australia, Portuguese
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nationality was still valid. In real political terms, dealing with the Fast Timorese in this
way would soive a thomny issue in relations with Indonesia.

r While the Howard government inherited the problem of dealing with East Timorese
applicants it, too, favoured vutcomes which had these applicants declared Portuguese
nationals and sent to Lisbon. In June 1897, T had written a Tribunal determination on an
East Timorese family in which I concluded that the option of seeking protection for them
in Portugal was not availabie and, because [ accepted that their claims were valid, the
family were refugees entitled to remain in Australia,

I had completed the draft except for a final correction of spelling and grammar when the
then Principal Member, Shun Chetty, called me into his office. He demanded that I not
praceed with my decision because the office of the Minister for Immigraticn had
contacted him te say that the government was preparing a prenouncement on the issue of

Portuguese nationality, Until that was available my decision sheuld be withheld from the :
applicant. '

T asked him when the government’s paper would be available. He said he did not know.

I then respended that since my decision was ready to be finalised it would be unfair to the
applicant to withhold it for some undefined period when the alternative was to advise him
that his application and that of his family had been successful, Chetty brushed this aside.
He said he would assume personal responsibility for what I had drafted end would
guarantee that it would be finalised and issued just as I had written it once the
Eovemment paper was available, T said I did not accept his arguments, He then
threatened that he would take the case from me. I commented that this would be an
extracrdinary step if he went through with his threat.

!lefl bis room, gathered up my papers and finalised the decision but not at the Tribupal,
The next morning, after | had delivered a copy of my decision to the applicant’s fegal
representative, I went to my office and discovered that Chetty had issued a direction to
staff that the case be taken from me. This was illegal and a breach of the relevant section
of the Migration Act covering the handling of cases by members, once those cases had
been assigned.

Thave concluded, from what Chetty said to me, that he felt he was under great pressure to
rein in the Tribunal members and get them to hoid off on compieting East Timorese cases
until the government made its pronouncement on Fortuguese nationality. I know that I
would not have had any resistance from Chetty if he had concluded that my applicant -
could seek protection in Portugal, In the broader context, I have read this to mean that
the Australian government would have been happy to dispose of the problem of East
Timorese applicants by sending them to Lisbon. Ifit could do this it would reriove yet
Enother “irritant” in the relationship with Indonesia.

Turning, finally to developments in the last few months, there is a disturbing note in the

comments of John Howard on the status of East Timor. He has heen reported in the press
as saying that autonomy for East Timor is his preferred option, not independence. The
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reason he offers is that there would be an inherent instability, economically and
strategically. Thers would, he adds, be the potential for ongoing tension betwesn an
independent East Timor and Indonesia of a type that might not exist if East Timor were
an autonomous part of Indonesia. (Canberra Times, February 11, 1999). No support is
offered for the assertion that an independent East Timor would be inherently unstable or
why a small entity with a total population under one million people should be a source of
potential tensions with Indonesia.

These remarks can be read as tiit in Indonesia’s favour: a pronouncement on the status of
East Timor that is calibrated to accord with the thinking of the Indonesian leadership.

But their more worrying implication is that they deny to the East Timorese an open-ended
choice about their future status. What might this say about the strength of Australia’s
commitment to a genuine act of self-determination? Moreover, if the East Timorese do
opt for independence, what continuing support developmental assistance can they rely on
from Australia if Howard’s preferred position is to have East Timor remain within the
Indonesta fold?

Australie’s future role on East Timor must be to support fully those international
processes, within the guidelines of the key TN resotution, that will ensure that the people
of the territory are given the chance to determine their future, unfettered by the pressures
exerted by Indonesia. Above all, this means the withdrawal of Indonesian forces and the
cessation of the supply of arms to pro-Jakarta elements in the territory. [fthere s to bea
period of autonony, then that has to be by the consent of the Bast Timorese. They must
be made aware that the choice of autonomy doss not close off other options, including the
option of independence. Australian assistance be it technical, humanitarian, or training
should be guaranteed ta the territory, especially if the East Timorese choose
independence. Australian policy cannot right the errors of the past but the opportunity
now presents itseif for a commitment to the future of East Timor based on principled
behaviour and not the sxpediency that has marred so many past acts.
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Tony Gibbons

Barrister Tony Gibbons was appointed to the RRT between 1993 - 1996. He outlined two instances of
pressure from the Minister on RRT Members in a phone conversation.

The first situation involved Mr Gibbons being given East Timorese asylum seekers to review.

He was allocated two of the first cases from East Timor and found that they were not Portuguese and were
refugees. The Minister referred his decision to the Attorney-General's dept for evaluation and Burmester,
counsel for the A-G responded to his decision by producing a written argument against the decision which
was circulated in the RRT (see Peter Mares ‘Borderline’ pp214-215).

Members of the RRT specialised in various countries though all did some Chinese as they were numerous.
Tony Gibbons specialised in cases from South America and East Timor. He knew there were more East
Timorese cases in the pipeline. So, when he had a slow period he went to the Principal Member and asked to
do some more Fast Timorese cases but was refused and given no reason. He was never given another East
Timor case. A very similar case to the one mentioned above was given to another member. That member
upheld the department. The applicant took the matter to the Federal Court and won. Gibbons' decision was
never taken to the Federal Court by the Minister. Gibbons takes it as a reasonable inference that there was
pressure exerted so that he did no more East Timorese cases.

The second situation Mr Gibbons referred to, was the regular briefing meetings for RRT Members where the
Principal Member, who had just returned from Canberra, would indicate the Minister's stated concerns. Such
things as the need to speed up decisions, that particular groups could have no satisfactory grounds for
protection visas. While no groups were named specifically, the message was that the Minister clearly thought
that certain types of cases should not be given visas.

Mr Gibbons also took up the issue of the set back rate. He checked and found the average rate of RRT
decistons which overturned the primary Departmental decision to refuse a protection visa averaged
approximately 15% at the time. There was a wide discrepancy between members, some setting aside 6% and
others over 30%. This did not appear explicable on the basis of the types of cases they were doing.

Since that time Tony Gibbons has spent 6 years in the Federal Court, much of the time appearing against
decisions of the RRT. He considers the decisions have become even more appalling, badly argued and
inadequately researched. He considers that an important factor in this happening is that many of the members
of the RRT have had no legal training and are dealing with a difficult and complex area of law. Certainly it
was true during his time at the RRT that those members who had legal training had to spend time helping
those who had not.

A further factor supporting poor decision making is that nine years ago the Federal Parliament passed s.476(2)
of the Migration Act. This law rules out any appeal to the Federal Court on the following grounds:

(a) that a breach of natural justice has occurred.

{b) that a decision is so unreasonable that no reasonable person would make it.

The member is thus protected if unreasonable or failing in natural justice. The Federal Court has, on numerous
occasions, had to say to asylum seekers that the decision of the RRT was so unreasonable that po reasonable
person would make it but we can do nothing.

The law was also an invitation to lawyers to find ways of overcoming it, and this helped to increase the cases
before the Federal Court,




Debby Nicholls

For Alastair Sands, Secretary

You may recall that when I attended Frances Milne's presentation at the Hearings on Wednesday, I asked for
permission to give support to a couple of her statements. In response, you said Committee rules would make
that difficult, but you would welcome an emailed submission. 1 therefore make the following comments:
The statement "We are therefore completely unsurprised at the allegations of Bruce Haigh etc”

Most of us who have been involved in the RRT process in the past couple of years have heard of Ministerial
imerference in the decision making process. I myself have been told about it by former members of the
Tribunal and individuals who work there. The interference does not come directly from the Minister by way
of a phone call or memo, rather it filters down through the network but in ways where there is no real doubt
about the source.

Reading RRT decisions is another clue. The conclusions reached at the end are often quite surprising, given
the evidence that has been presented, but in the end it is the Tribunal Member who is allowed to decide on
his/her consideration of that evidence what actual fact has occurred, Once this fact is recorded in the decision,
it cannot be challenged in the Federal Court unless it actually misquotes details. It is not unreasonable to
conchide that the Member has taken care to cast doubt on statements wherever the opportunity has occurred.
‘The statement "We also believe that not all applicants for a a s417 determination have an equal chance of
attracting the Minister's attention” and "it is a matter of whether an asylum seeker can obtain the support of
someone with sufticient influence ete”

The initial statement is well supported by the situations reported recently in the press, which refers to s417
applications in general. As for the second portion of the statement regarding asylum seckers, I know of only a
handful of asylum seekers who have been successful in obtaining Ministerial intervention, an substantially
smaller percentage of the total number of applicants than in the cases recently noted in the press. As Ms Milne
noted, because no reasons need to be given for rejection of requests for intervention, we can only surmise why
one application is successful and a myriad fail, and tend to attribute it to the type of support which has been
given.

The frustration experienced in connection with the s417 process was clearly stated by the previous speakers,
Ms Lesick, Ms Newell and Mr Duffield. As someone who has been invelved in a number of these requests to
the Minister, [ wholeheartedly support everything they said.

Thank you for including this in the Select Committee papers.

Yowrs sincerely,
[¥ebby Nicholls

24.10.2003




Timorese asylum claims blocked by secret freeze
By Helen Signy and Cynthia Banham, SMH November 18 2002

The Australian Government issued a secret directive that refugee applications from the East Timorese community should
be put on hold, documents obtained by the Herald claim.

About 1800 Fast Timorese have been waiting for up to 10 years for their applications to be processed. They face
deportation to East Timor because the Federal Government says it is safe for them to return. The Immigration Minister,
Philip Ruddock, has blamed the delay on litigation by the applicants and advocacy groups.

"If you have migration rules that operate on that basis, every unlawful [Immigrant] that comes to Australia would simply
say, 'all I've got to do is outwit you and stay in a community long enough and eventually vou'll say it's all too ... hard, I'm
entitled to stay,” he said.

But an internal Refugee Review Tribunal memo obtained by the Herald claims there was a secret moratoriurn which
prevented any of the Iiast Timorese cases from being finalised.

The memo, sent in 1993 from a former tribunal member to the acting principal member, says the moratorium was
followed by similar directions given verbally and by internal mail.

"Members have been kept in total ignorance of the existence of this official moratorium even though it was a general
tatking point that no Indonesian/East Timorese cases appeared to be coming through the constitution system,” the memo
says.

"When the existence of this moratorium ... was raised with you, your reaction was to tell members we were not supposed
to know about it, commence a hunt to establish how it was we came to know about it, presumably with the object of
punishing somecne and a crackdown on the staff of Client Services. who were probably unaware of the explosive effect
knowledge of this secret instruction might have both within the RRT as well as outside it."

The moratorium, allegedly imposed by the Labor government in 1995, appears to have been kept by the present
Government, which did not start processing Fast Timorese claims until April this year.

A spokesman for the Fast Timorese Government, Abel Guterres, said East Timor would respect the decision fo repatriate
the asylum seekers but that the country was in no position economically to take them.

Lawyers for Australia's East Timorese community say most of the applicants would have qualified as refugees if their
applications had been processed promptly.

"We knew the Fast Timorese cases were not being processed, but here is documentation {from within the RRT ...
{showing] it was the government or agencies of the government that have underhandedty interfered with and undermined
their due process,” said Andrew McNaughtan, of the Australia East Timor Association.

A spokeswoman for Mr Ruddock said the reason claims were not processed was because the East Timorese in Australia
had been entitled 1o apply for Portuguese citizenship, but had declined to.

However, the Federal Court found against the Immigration Department's stand on Portuguese nationality in three cases in
1997, 1998 and 2G00.

Attachment 2 : Document refating to Christine Hayward, RRT Member was supplied by Dr Andrew McNaughtan, of
the Austratia East Timor Association.

Article supplied by Sister Susan Connolly, Mary MacKilop Institute for East Timorese Stdies.




REFUGEE REVIEW TRIBUNAL MEMO

STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL
FOR THE ACTING PRINCIPAL MEMBER ONLY

TO: Acting Prénmipak Meraber Gerking
FROM:Christine Hayward

DATE: 22 Semﬁmb&r 1985

(A4

SUBJECT Your minute of 8 September 198

mtroducten

In addition t¢ the above, | have also received your Minute dated 14 Septamber
1998, addressad to all Members in Sydney. In it, you agres that in the short
periad you have been Acting Principal Member, vou have ohserved significant
mczm;g oroblems ammﬂgsé the RAT Members in Sydney, These problems are iong
standing. | nots from the two draft responses sent 1o the Administrative Review
ucunm% {we have not seen the final verzisn) which vour and the F‘segfstmm name
apg}aam on, so | am assuming you take this position also, that the sntire morale
problem in Sydney is a result of a small number of membars who will not
conform to raquirsments as reasonably laid down by Professor Cartoma. In
contrast, when Profasser Certorna visited Sydney member to discuss the ARC

questionnairs, he said not ane ART member had anything good to say shout the

olaea. As members have hogn given no access ts the questionnaira results or
the sigﬂﬁd version of what vou send to the ARG, this is the only information we
have. What Professor Certama told members s therefore incansistent with the
six troublemakers theory put forward to the ARC in explanation. Parhaps you
could start rebuilding morale by proviging me with a final signed version of the
ARC respansa. Parts of the draft | saw containg a thinly vailed, cna-sided attack
on ma congsrning some of the issues You now 88y you want to know ahout. |
note that the time you signad the ART lefter vou expressad no intsrest in

checking for yoursalf the truth of certain allegations,




in respect of this morale problem, vou say you intend to provide members with
a better work environment and you want 1o change practices 10 ensure that

Meambers “knew what is happaning oo & ribunal wide basis.” | could not agres
marg, but such statements are taken with a grain of szlt. | want 1o give vau an

autiine of why and | will use 2 current exampis.

Cnly in the past few wesks Membars discovered that both you and the
praceding Prncipal Member had issusd ingstructions to the Client Services
Saation, which wers titled a "maoratarium” on constituting Fast
Timorasg/Indanesian cases. Members have been kept in total ignosanacs of the
-éxési%m& of this official moratorium even though it was a general talking point
that ng %néﬁmgiani&am Timorese cases appearead 10 be coming through the
canstitution system and aobviously something was going on at the Principal
Member level to causa this, Client Service stafl were sufficiantly well aware of
this rooratosium 1o includs rafarence to it in their staff bulletin. When the
existence of this moratorium, keot segret from members until recsnt waeks, was
raigad with you, your reaction was to tell members we were not supposed to
know abous it, commencs a hupt ta sstablish how it was we came to know
sbout it, presumably with the objeer of punishing ssmeone and a crack down on
the staff on Cllent Services, who waers probably unaware of the explosive sffect
knowledge of this secret instruniion might have both within the RRT ag well as

cutside it

Whan you tosk up the Acting Principal Membars nosition, Mambars anxious to
try and inject some comimonsanss into the way the Tribunal was daaling {or
mmé specificaily not ééaimg} with East Timoresse cases, spproached you in an
open mannear with their concerns that the ART must he ssen to be dealing
properly with thess casss. At that time they had no idea of the secrat
moratorium and it 'apmara ity existences was never volunteered by you. Thoss
mambers suggasted a meeting of all members o discuss tha issue, whigh is
mngmem with your ststed goal of better communication. Your immediata
response was 1o accuse them in writing of sseking to "usurp” your powers as

Aating Principal Meamber.
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This instant atiack mode, thougn less publie that your cemait 1o me in June
18985 (and less dirgct than my experiences with yvour predecesser, Frofassor
Certomas serizl non-response/ serial non-acknowledgment model is an example
af-what created the poor marals you have already agreed exists in Sydnay. Your
styla-of maenagemean . the instant attack mede wheneyver samething 15 raisad
you do not want 1o deal with for whataver rezsons - is in contradiction to your
statad goals of cpen communicstion, mamber consuitation ang morale buiiding.
Whether by déé%gﬁ or affect, members reaction to your attack mods is 1o

cotrest, watch and wait, a3 guch issues will invariably gxplode at some tima,

Wmﬁawr tha entrenched management style of the Principal Member - passive
privales means of zotive oublic means - many membars and staff with gendine
concerns ara denied a place or person 10 take thelr concerns to and have them
tregtad "seriousiy.” This is what you did ta me in June 1988, whan | raised my
conoérms amongst ail members about Professar Certoma’s highly gdiractive
language to members with carriage of Eest Timorase cases. It is difficult for ma
to sat this aside now simply becauss vou have taken us cut for a coffes and
mads a few public statamants about the need for mamber consuitation. itis
hard to accept when at the same time | still see your instant reagtien is still 1o
attack members who seek 1o raise sensitive matters vou do not want discussad,
This undermines my confidence about to how yvou will handle the matters | raiss
here. You claarly have a definad chjective which you will not even discuss with
me, “?’au may use this infarmation for good or for il | do not know whether you
will taka these matters seriously and put remedial action éﬂta place, orif itis to
na used for lass attractive purposes. | will explors the history of this

“moratarium” a further to flesh out what | mean by this.

inn the pericd before the exisiance of this seoret East Timorese/Indonesian
masaﬂwmm macame known o members, | had grown increasingly alarmed st
tha way frincipal Member Certoma was becoming invel lved in matters proparly
the province of members who which the casg was congtituted, This was
happening gcross g range of matters, including a number of cases of mine

whers Mr Josl was the adviser. | sas a2 pattarn that cancarms me.
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o hiz approach and that | thaught it was ultra vires, 1o no sffect, and Legal Aid
at laast were already aware of his previous ingiructions, | went publiz i my
renly to his June 1985 comall message to members. | had exhaysted 2 private

avanues,

The Pringipal Mambers June 189% comall message stated Mampers "ghould not
proceed to finalise™ East Timorese cases. (tis couched in uncompromising
ia,mgi,gaga‘ { gbgﬁmgﬁ to it ggain, this time not privately o Professor Certomnd 23
that demenstrably had not warked, but to all Members using an
attaghment/reply facility to the coemail message he sent. | nota at that tma you
said abaut my public comments “! find it difficult to 1ake the viaws expressad by
the person who circulates this message seriously.” | note from your recent
sammunications to members vou have rstreated complaely from the direclive
language of Professar Certama’s that | complained of and adopted the non-
diractive language formulation | suggestad and about which you haaped sush
scorn on only recently. Yeour current astions indicate to ma that dsspite your
unmrreczm“pubiiz comments 1o the contrary, you are in faet taking wnat | said
very sasinusly indeed. it would be 2 boost 1o my morsle and in keeping with ihe
gacis you identifisd in your minuts of 14 September 1985, if you acknowledged
1o all the staff who saw this {(Registrar, Deputy Registrars, Office Managers,
Director Reasarch and head of Legal) and sl the members it was sent te, hat

yvoeu have now decsided | was right about this.

At the time Wu publicly attacked my position, & number of Members chorused
their approval of your position and soncomitantly, against mine. ideas are
attackad or supported depending on the identity of the meambser who states
them, rathe& than on the intrinsic worth of the srgumant. The culturs of saying
'yes' to whomaver is in charge, irrsspective of your true views, is another
nroblem. Members with vigws 1o the cantrary become 100 intimigated to voice
them, For example, members whao agraed with my interpretation of Professor
Qﬁﬂéma'a wards {which your actions indlcate you now share) approached me
privatsly to tell me this. Some wars wall awars of my past attemp1s to privately

gat Professor Certoma to approach this matter differently. They said to mé thay
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first information | gamed that | did not like was the fact that the twa
ambers who wanted further information about the nationslity issue from a
Forjuguess lawyer Professor Rarmas, Members Fergus and Fang, wers baing
ridicuted for asking for this material. | heard a number of adverss comments
about this. The person ultimaraly respansible for processing this request was Ma
Lam, Qirectar of Ressarch., who was alsa one af the people | clearly recall
making derogatory remarks to me about the two members. | advisad one of the
mambers sbout her remarks 2t the time, He 10ld in turn me about the inordinate
delay caused within this tribunat in processing what was, in his experiencs, a
retatively simple information request. He had follawed the requasts o months
only to find it was being bouncad sround Inside the RAT without the required
attention, 1t was difficult to pin down why this was sc, Ma Lamn had siready
ravealed her ﬁsigpiaagura to me aboul tis request. The managemaent view at that
time appearsd to be that members should get on with making the kEast Timorgse

decisians on tha informaztion before them.

This view then changed. In sarly 1838 the Principal Member gave verbal orders
for Members not finalise their East Timoress cases currently constituted to
them. | orally objectad to his bald instruction st tha time as | considersd it to be
ultra virag, to ne avail, | am alzo aware that in sarly 1888 at least one Mambaer
wrgte 10 Legal Ald advising them he was not orocsading with hearing becauss
of t?ﬁ%’g request from Profassor Certoma, Legal Ald ars thersfore formally aware

of this instruction.

1o June 1885 Principal Member Certoma sant anather message, this tims via
cemail {not | note a formal File Note that would as a matter of course go on the
relevant files and be readily discoverable under 501 Tha siatus of comail
messageas, while clearly caught under the FOI Act, are an area that FQI
Gﬁ!ﬁgétm and others within the RRT appear to think is not clear cut and no
aystazﬁma m’,amh is undertaken to sae if such messages should be on an FOUd
filel, i read Pﬁaf&ssm Certoma’s message as an ‘order’ or ‘instruction’ to all
Mambers not 1o proceed with any East Timerese cases constituted to them. As |

had p#&wiaua!v traversed privately with the Principal Mamber my disagreemsant

.
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weare so intimidatad by your (and omher Mermbars) attack on ma such thatin
arder to aveid being targeted themselves for similar treatment, they felt unable

ta express their contrary Views.,

it amazes me that merely disagresing with the Principal Mambers position s
perceived by certain Members as gross disloyaity, with the sole aim of
"undermining”-the Principsl Merber or, as per your raggnt message, "usurping”
vour powers. it aiso amazes ma that such a debale presents certain meambers
with an cﬁppeswmw to try and prove their unguestioning loyally to the Principsal
Member, using the crude language of 3 football mateh "on va" but failing 10 deal
with the actual issue. Part of this is @ spin off about numbers and productivity,

which you are also weighing into. The climats is such that members who ara )

. mat in the top decisicn making category arg not permitted te have & worthwhile

opinion on any topic. The most devastatingly effective way | nould think of 1o
urdérmine the Principal Mamber is not to argus - 10 simply agres with
gverythifg he says or does frrespective of how prepostercus, and to continue 10
de so when vour true belief is atherwise. | hava sxcellant recall for every time
mami&eré who took a public positions supporting Prafessor Certoma cams 1o me
1o privately to complain about the very same maters thay criticised me putlicly

for.

Sz.zddeﬁiy, in the last week and aftar you asserted Members were attampting 10
Usurp your pav&&rﬂ by tha simpla agt of wanting to meet and talk about East
Timarede issues, and after members than found cut about this secret
“moraterium” f,ﬁn Iﬂds}nagian?East Timorese casses issuss by Professer Certoma
and ycﬁrseif and after menths after your public statemant that you found the
points ? made sbout using sxtremely carsful, non-diractive language to Members
with carriage of East Timorese cases not 1o be taken seriousiy, the language you

are using about the East Timorese cases has dramatically altered,

| could net understand why. However, | was told on 21 September 1985 that

Lega!l Aid hava lodged an FOl request ralating to the pracessing {or more

corractly non-processing) of East Timeress cases. Cancurrent to this | receivad a
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memerandum from vou dated 15 September 12335 {which | did not receiva until
12 September 1995} sisting vou have given instructions 1o the Registrar 1o
“insrruct” ART staif not 1o seek advice from Members sbout FOU applications.
Tha only contact we are parmitted it appears is the courtesy of being told that

an FOI application has been lodged.,

Whan | have soms free time | will write to you to set osut why | hellave your
instruction to the Registrar and her proposed instruction 10 staff is uitra vireg. |
make the point that if there had been one of the aims stated in your |
mamorandum of 14 September 1985 - communication and consultation - this
issue could have ben thrashed out prior to yvou actually committing yourself to
napar and in my view making an error, It is my hope though that this instruction
hag not yet been issued and this consultation will 1ake place baforehand. Again
employing that hackneyed exprassion, | believe thera is a Pandora’s box
surreunding matarial clearly relevant to the non-processing of these cases, soma
of which is held by members and othars by registry, some of which is on
elactronic mail and some of which iz likely not to be on the official RRT
applicant fiie, if the staff with the statutary respensibility for FOI Dalegata is
forbiddan in writing by you or the Regisirar from dissussing such matters with
marnbers, ths cﬁaéegs of all the matarial in the possession and controf of the
RRT on thiz subjeet, that clearly relates to these cases, is uniikaly to be
digcovered or roleased under FOL IF it then emerges st some later date 2g., in
the Padersl Court procesdings, then it will appsar as if the RRT is deliberataly
subverting the FOI Act, This example encapsulates the ongoing nature of a

clustar of problams | havs been concerned about for a leng time.
Background mattars to NS4/03487

Yaour mamorandum s&? 14 September 1995 says that Members "need to faal”
tﬁ%‘é managamsnt will treat Members fairly, | would say that Mambers not only
nesd te "feel” that is so, but that it must be an aobjsctive reality as opposed to 8
mare subjective psrception. An important aspset of fair treatment is ensuring

that whesn Members raise issues or problems with managemsent, instead of going
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Parts 2 & 3 & Conclusion

2.4 Comparison between Minister Bolkus and Minister Ruddock

There are two key differences in the way the current and preceding Ministers have exercised s417 discretion. The first
disparity relates to the types of visas granted. As discussed in 2.2, Minister Bolkus granted only permanent Protection
Visas while the incumbent has granted an array of temporary and permanent visa types. The other salient difference is in
the respective styles of making statements to Parliament,

2.4.1 Statements to Parliament

Section 417(4) requires the Minister fo provide to each House of Parliament a statement containing:

a) The RRT's decision

b) The decision substituted by the Minister

¢) The reasons for the Minister's decision, and the Minister's reasons for believing the decision to be in the pubiic
interest.

The two Ministers have interpreted subsection 4(¢) differently. The statements made by Minister Bolkus frequently
provided detailed information about the nature of the case decided upon, and the impetus for exercising discretion in that
particular case. For example,

While not refugee-Convention refated, the applicant would suffer intense personal hardship should she retum to her
country of origin, T have also taken into account the interests of the applicant's Australian citizen infant child. To separate
the family especialty as the child is a baby, would go against the interests of the child. [7/8/95]

The applicant's circumstances are such that a return to their home country would mean that the family would be
subjected to harassment and intimidation by both the authorities and the general populace. The applicant's religious
beticfs are in conflict with the state religion which alse dominates the laws of the country. The two children of the
applicant have spent their formative vears in Australia having arrived in Australia at the ages of 13 years and 3 years in
19%4 and would have extreme difficulty in adiusting (o strict religious codes in place in their home country. [7/8/95]

The applicant was subiected to the trauma of a horrific and racially motivated sexual attack as a consequence of which
she continues to suffer mental and physical health problems, and would be likely to suffer further trauma if retwrned to
her country.! [16/10/95]

Minister Bolkus often made reference to the applicant's (Feontinuing subjective fear,” or the (Eexceptional personal
hardship,' and (Ediscrimination and prejudice’ that the applicant would face if returned. He even cited (Ethat it is in the
interest of the applicant and his family that he should remain as opposed to it being (Ein the public interest’ as the basis
for making a decision.

A study of Minister Ruddock's statements in his first two years in office suggest that a similar<hough much less
descriptivesstyle to his predecessor was adopted. Statements tabled from November 1998 to August 2002 however,
evince a standardisation of the reasons provided.

Having regard to the applicant’s particular circumstances and personal characteristics, 1 think it
would be in the public interest to allow him to remain in Australia.

As a result, the only information to glean from these pro-forma type documents is the date of decision and the type of
visa class granted. Surprisingly though, DIMIA carelessly breached s417(5) on two occasions by publishing the name of
the applicant in the tabled statement.

Of concern is not only the consequent dearth of information available to the public, especially applicants and advocates
who wish to better understand ministerial reasoning for positive decisions, but also Minister Ruddock’s patent disregard
for the legislative requirement in s417(4)(c) to set out (Ethe Minister's reasons for thinking that his or her actions are in
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the public intersst.' The nebulous phrase replicated in every statement is inadequate and meaningless. Yet, there is no
parliamentary review of specific cases reported by the Minister, nor any effective regulation in place to ensure that the
Minister complies with his legal duty to disclose substantive reasoning. The importance of properly complying with the
statutory criferia is heightened by the fact that the Minister is not required to table reasons in Parliament for refusing or
not considering cases.

Significantly, Minister Ruddock’s s351 Statements to Parliament set out case-specific reasons for why it is in the public
interest for the Minister to substitute a decision of the Migration Review Tribunal. The discrepancy between s417 and
$351 staterents 1s not justified by the sensitive (Ehumanitarian claims' of s417 applicants. Minister Bolkus proved that it
is possible to provide detailed reasons for decisions without jeopardising the safety of the applicant or associated persons,

3 Key deficiencies in the s417 process

The current Minister cites four objectives that influence and shape Australia's refugee determination systenn: public
accountabitity of government; compliance with international obligations; administrative justice for the individual; and
practical, effictent and lawful administration. Presumably, these objectives also extend to s417 ministerial intervention
even though applicants have not been recognised as refugees. Interestingly the Government occasionally refers to the
5417 process as a discrete stage of (Ereview! for failed asylum seckers.

Ironically, the key deficiencies in the 8417 process correspend In many ways to the Minister's said objectives. In this
section, the restricted avenues of review from s417 decisions and lack of accountability mechanisms, together with the
politicisation of the 5417 process are considered against the concept of the rule of law. In addition, the dearth of
information on ministerial discretion, inadequacies of the Guidelines and weaknesses in the administrative procedural
regime are also addressed.

3.1 Lack of Accountability

If the underlying idea of accountability can be expressed simply as (Egiving an account or expianation,’ without any
mention of the varied forms or processes of accountability, then minimal effort is needed to be deemed accountable’ in
some way. Yet, it appears that the current practices of the Minister relating to s417 ministerial discretion might arguably
be falling short of meeting even basic notions of accountability.

The most alarming observation is that the current Minister may be cvading his tegislative duty under s417(4)(c) to
provide reasons for befieving the decision to be in the public interest. Section 417(4} is the only check on the exercise of
5417 power. Thus a Minister who only partially complies with the sole mechanism of accountability to Parliament and
the wider public, is acting irresponsibly and with excessive autonomy. The absence of Parliamentary review to scrotinise
5417 decisions contributes to the unaccountable state of affairs regarding ministerial discretion.

Avenues for judicial review are practically non-existent. Given the Minister is not required to make public his reasons for
refusing or not considering certain cases, the difficulty in accessing ministerial reasoning in rejected cases hinders the
effectiveness of judicial review for the targely (Enon-reviewable' s417 discretion. Another evidential problem is that the
biandness of the Minister's pro-forma statements for refusing or not considering cerfain cases, may not reveal any error
on which to base a claim against the Minister. Given the s417 caseload of several thousand requests being lodged each
year, and the enormous potential for litigation, the drive to curtail judicial review may be due to administrative ease and
economic efficiency, as well as seeking to ensure the immunity of the Minister’s decisions.

The inquiry by the Senatc Legal and Constitutional References Committee recommended positive reforms for s417
ministerial discretion in its report, Sanctuary Under Review. In short, the recommendations aimed at improving
transparency, accountability and compliance with international obligations. The Government dismissed as unnecessary
all of the major recommendations, or otherwise insisted that certain recommendations were already current practice.
None of the recommendations were actually implemented. The lack of substantive impact of the Senate's report
highlights the fact that public inquiries with non-binding recommendations offer no real safeguard against a government
intent on persisting with its policies. Although the Inquiry was valuable in providing a forum for scrutiny and debate,
there has been virtually no counteraction to the Government's inertial response to the Report.

The Minister is not accountable to the Commonwealth Ombudsman as s5(2){a) of the Ombudsmans Act 1976 (Cth)
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precludes the independent government agency from investigating action taken by a Minister. However, the actions of
IIMIA officers are subject to investigation. The Ombudsman will act if the administrative action investigated is deemed
untawful, unreasonable, unjust, oppressive, improperly discriminatory, or otherwise Ewrong'. For instance, if there has
been unreasonable delay in processing a 5417 request. The Ombudsman has recommendatory powers and political clout
but cannot legally enforce its findings.

An international law remedy for failed s 417 applicants with a genuine treaty-based claim is to lodge a complaint to the
United Nations. A successful cutcome would result in adverse media attention and political embarrassment for the
Minister and Governrent, and probably act as a good accountability mechanism. However, communications to the UN
arc rare as dommestc remedies must first be exhausted, and there is considerable expense and time involved in the process.
T'o date there have been two communications made to the Human Rights Commitiee and Commitiee Against Torture by
faited s417 applicants that have resulted in favourable decisions for the complainants.

The above overview of avenues of appeal from the 3417 process suggests a regime that is largely devoid of effective and
reliable accountability mechanisms. It is argued that judicial review of administrative decisions is considered
internationaily to be a human right, and should therefore extend to every person physically in Australia. The right arises
from Australia's international obligations that require member states to treat people equally before the taw and to provide
access to courts. The absence of external review is incongruous with one of the fundamental rule of taw principles, that
every action of government must be justified by, and testable against, pre-existing law. Moreover, the lack of
accountability in the 417 process reflects negatively on Australian soctety, and its identity as a liberal democracy that
supposedly believes in the rule of Taw and a fair go’ for all.

3.2 Politicised nature of s417 decisions
DIMIA has stressed the centrality of the Minister in the s417 process by stating,

irrespective of the processes, the administrative chain of events, the whole raft of considerations that are taken into
account, at the end of the day, the decision is the Minister's and it is the Minister's personally. And in a sense, it is
possibly arguable that regardless of what underpinning processes you have, in a sense, they count for nought if the
Minister decides he will not even consider considering to exercise his power.

Conseguently, the underltying presumption in the 5417 process is that the Minister's interpretation is always right and that
he/she always acts in good faith. This is problematic. The Minister is influenced by a host of factors, other than the merits
of the individual case, when exercising his/her discretion. These factors may be as diverse as: international obligations;
the Guidelines; immigration policy; foreign policy; migration quotas; political expediency; economic policy; and
personal bias. The High Court has noted that the Minister functions in the arena of public debate, political controversy,
and democratic accountability' and pointed out that [m]inisterial decisions are not the subject of the same requirements of
actual and manifest independence and impartizlity as are required by law of the decisions of courts and tribunals.' Asa
politician, the Minister is not an independent decision-maker free from political interests and agendas. Given such a lack
of impartiality, it is questionable whether the Minister alone should be entrusted with the task of acting as the safety net’
against breaches of Australia's intemational humanitarian obligations.

Without any built-in’ protection against political influence or interference, the Minister's ability (o act as a safety net' is
often compromised. Anecdotal evidence suggests that certain advocates are able to conveniently bypass the MIU stage
and access the current Minister to discuss 5417 requests, often with favourable resutts. This claim is also supported by the
Refugee and Imnugration Legal Centre:

Defects in the process are apparent given the Minister’s reliance upon informal recommendations by persons known and
respected by the Minister outside the Department, who contact or are contacted by the Minister on an informal basis to
discuss individual cases. The politicisation’ of these decisions is a serious problem and undermines the credibility of the
process.

Crock also criticises the ad oc manner in which the politicised decision-making of the Minister takes place and cites
changing public opinion as ane of the factors that clouds the assessment of individual cases. . She rightly claims that
without consistent and impartial decision-making, it is difficult to envisage a system that produces decisions that are
accurate, efficient or acceptable.'

3.3 Problems stemming from the Ministerial Guidelines
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The Guidelines are instrumental throughout the assessment of requests but espectally when the case manager and MIU
officer are determining whether or not to refer a case to the Minister. Although the Guidelines are useful and reasonably
comprehensive, they are also deliberately broad and open to a multitude of interpretations. There is no examination of the
quality of the decision-making by the case manager or MIU officer, and it is virtually impossible to challenge a DIMIA
officer's interpretation of the Guidelines. There is also no way of ensuring consistent application of the Guidelines
between the three M1 offices because of the large number of requests made fo each office annually, For instance, each
year the Sydney MIU handles approximately 7000 requests. the Metbourne MIU deals with approximately 1800 requests
and the Perth MIU comprises just one person to handle approximately 800 requests per year, 8¢ per cent of which
emanate from detainees. It is improbable that uniform standards of application can be achieved given the logistical and
time management difficulties of comparing requests.

The lack of clear and legaily binding criteria against which humanitarian claims can be assessed results in a lack of
consistency in the administrative and ministerial stages of decision-making. The suggestion that a proper codification of
all of Australia's obligations arising under human rights treaties be incorporated into the Guidelines, has not received due
constderation by the Government.

3.4 Lack of Transparency

It is of serious concern that information about the operation of ministerial discretion is not widely available. Aside from
the Senate's Report, which contains incomplete statistical data from 19931995, and the occasional reference to s417
Protection Visa grants in the DIMIA Annual Report, it is necessary to personally request information about ministerial
intervention. The multitude of DIMIA internet resources, including Fact Sheers and Media Releases, provides no
substantive information as to how many visas are granted each year, what types of visas are issued or usefut information
outlining procedural issues.

Many advecates are poorly informed about the administrative procedure and potential time frame regarding a request, as
well as the range of visas being granted, and the chance of 2 positive oulcome. Some advisers rely on hearsay to gauge
the likelihood of the Minister intervening in a certain type of case, and may consequently design the request based on this
{misjinformation. Preferably, advocates should seek the client’s file from the Minister's Office under the Freedom of
Information Act 1982 (Cth) in an effort to better understand the reasoning process behind the decision. Still, there is no
guarantes that the decision-making rationale can be easily grasped.

DIMIA does not collect statistics on the number of s417 requests that have legal or other assistance for their preparation,
or the percentage of requests with expressions of support from others in the Australian community. Information about the
number of applicants in detention compared with those in the community is not publicly available. It is not even possible
to find out how many cases requesting ministerial intervention are lodged in one year, or the corresponding country of
origin information.

The reluctance to make public statistics which help demonstrate the way the minister's discretion is being exercised is
symptomatic of a wider problem: a lack of transparency in the process of ministerial intervention. When asked why
information regarding the reasoning process behind s417 decision-making is not accessible, DIMIA simply regurgitated a
statutory deseription of $417 and stressed the importance of keeping personal information confidential for the security of
certain people at risk. The apparent culture of secrecy and bureaucratic evasiveness lends itself to a sense of distrust and
suspiciousness in the community. 1s the Department afraid of its internal proceedings being made public? To adopt Lord
Hewart's words, (£it is a gueer sort of justice that will not bear the light of publicity.'

3.5 Other Deficiencies

Tt is beyond the scope of this paper to deal with all of the weaknesses in the 5417 process however, it is important to
briefly acknowledge some issues relating to [a lack of] procedural faimess and administrative [injeflficiency, in response
to the Minister's objectives for Australia's protection regime.

A current practice in some states is for the same DIMIA official to act as both a primary decision-maker in determining
refugee status and a 5417 PIGA' case manager. To avoid a problem of bias and possibly also the rejection mentality’ of
some decision-makers, there is a sound argument that an individual officer should not be involved more than once in any
case.
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It is not known what gualifications DIMIA officers dealing with s417 cases have regarding Austratia’s humanitarian
obligations under international law. There is evidence that the Attorney-General's Department provided DIMIA officers
with educational training relating to non-refoulement obligations when the Guidelines were introduced. However, there is
also evidence that some DIMIA officers do not demonstrate a comprehensive understanding of Australia's non-
Convention obligations given their rejection of patently deserving cases. Clearly, such administrative decision-makers
ought to be fully conversant with the range of international humanitarian obligations that Australia is required to comply
with.

All s417 cases are determined by assessment of documentary evidence only. It is possible that the applicant may be
contacted by DIMIA if the Minister requests additional information in order to consider the case, aithough this practice
could be described as the exception to the rule.! Significantly, applicants do not have any opportunity for hearings,
interviews, the right to access adverse information, or other measures of procedural fairmess.

Finally, there is no right to legal assistance for applicants in preparing s417 requests. The effectiveness of the ministerial
discretion appears to refy on a premise that an applicant has the knowledge and resources to make a written request. Due
to factors such as cultural and language barriers, legal costs and geographical isolation for the majority of people in
detention, applicants do not have equitable access to the Minister. Most advocates have advised that there is a heavy
reliance amongst clients on word of mouth' to find out about the ministerial intervention review option and seek legal
advice.

Conclusion
The empirical research undertaken from JulyNovember 2002 has convinced the author that there is much potential for
the eurrent system of s417 ministerial intervention to be improved.

There is a clear exigency amongst faited refugee claimants and throughout the refugee advocacy community for
explanatory material on making 5417 requests. DIMIA should disseminate an information sheet in various languages 1o
explain the provisions of $417 and the Guidelines, and publish statistical information on ministerial discretion in the
DIMIA Amnual Report. Not only is the existing documentation on ministerial intervention cursory and vague, it is not
easily accessible. An applicant should not be disadvantaged by the Government's failure to equip him/her with the
necessary knowledge and resources to lodge a request.

Pivotal to the concepts of the rule of law and accountable government, is the need for the Executive to fully comply with
their statutory duties. The current Minister falls short of satisfving 417(4)(¢) by deciining to provide case specific reasons
for cach instance of ministerial intervention. Such form is both indolent and remiss, and should be rectified so that the
public can better identify the reasoning process behind s417 decisions.

Although it cannot be shown conclusively that the s417 discretion is being exercised to disproportionately assist
applicants with claims that are ror based on Australia's international humanitarian obligations, the statistical data in Part
2 strongly suggests that applicants with immediate family ties are the overwhelming beneficiaries of the Minister's
discretion. The displacement of permanent Protection Visas with temporary Spouse Visas seems (o signal that potitical
considerations are weighing heavily on Ministerial reasoning. Most alarming of all the findings, is that the 5417
humanitarian safety net' regime of ministerial intervention is neglecting to provide protection to deserving recipients,
notably the deceased Bilal Ahad, and the authors of the two successful communications to UN Committees,

Regrettably, the parameters of this study have prevented examination of alternative mechanisms to address Australia's
international hurnanitarian obligations, such as on-shore humanitarian visas and other forms of complementary
protection. It is hoped however, that this report contributes in some way to a better understanding of Australia's
protection regime. In an ideal Australian society, those individuals who face a significant threat to their personal security,
human rights or human dignity if returned to another territory will receive the protection they deserve.
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JTUDGE: WILCOX
IDATE OF 20 MAY 2003

IWHERE MADE: SYDNEY
[HE COURT ORDERS THAT:

1. The appeal be dismissed.

. The appeliant, Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous pffairs, pay the costs
§of the respondent.

iNote: Settlement and entry of orders Is dealt with in Order 36 of the Federal €ourt Rules.

IN THE FEDERAL COURT OF AUSTRALIA
E NEW SOUTH WALES BISTRICT REGISTRY N63 of 2003

ON APPEAL FROM A FEDERAL MAGISTRATE

 BETWEEN: MINISTER FOR IMMIGRATION AND MULTICULTURALIAND
INDIGENOUS AFFAIRS

APPELLANT
AND: NABS

RESPONDENT

JUDGE: WILCOX J
DATE: 20 MAY 2003
PLACE: SYDNEY

REASONS FOR JUDGMENT

EWILCOX |

§1 Thicis an appeal by the Minister for Immigranon and Multicuitural and Indigenous Affairs ("the
§ Minister") against a decision of a federal magistrate (Raphae! FM) sllowing ap application for

L judicial review of a decision of the Refugse Review Tribunal ("the Tribunal™)} The Tribuna!
affirmed a decision of a delegare of the Minister to refuse to grant the responBent a protection visa.
The respondent filed a notice of contention by which he sought to sustain thefmagistrate's decision
8 upon an alternative ground thet was not acceptied by the magistrate.

B2 Pursuant to s 25(1A) of the Federal Cowrt of Australin Act 1976, the Chief Justice directed the
& appeal be heard by a single judge of the Court.

E Background

3 The respondent, an Iranian citizen, arrived in Auvstralia on 21 March 2000, He sought a
protection visa, claiming to be a refugee, within the meaning of the 1951 Corpvention relating
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g ALR 24, Consequently, counsel argued the application for mudicial raview by
calied "Hickmar: exceptions”. Counsel for the apphicant (Mr L Xarp) relied a}lthe first exception in

E otherwise of it staterents that it cannot be satd 1o bave made a bona fde atg

| detailing fifteen alleged misstaterments, by the Tribunal in its reasons, of the
¢ the Minister (Mr J Smith) had responded to that-table, conceding many of th
 claimed by Mr Karp. The magisivate set out the table in his reasons for jud
¥ references to two edditional statements of the evidence by the Tribunal that
¢ himsell and thought to be dubious.

| was able to determine whether the errors claimed by Mr Karp had occurred
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EAlthough he is the respondent to this appeal, it is convenient to refer to this p
Bioplicant”, as did the Tribunel and Raphael FM,

4 The applicant claimed he became a Christian, while still in Irare and this led

fondy upon his family paying large bribes.
8 hristian activities However, the Tribunal said this was done only "to provid

§in determining whether he has 2 well founded fear of being persecuted for Co

4the Aigrarion Act 1958 epplied to the applicant "and his conduct in Australia

E ovidence was not reliable”, The member expressed the view "that he fabricate
§ claims in an attempt to create for himself the profile of a refugee”.

17 The Tribunal did not suggest the incidents claimed by the applicant, if true,
E amounted to persecution for a Convention reason; the applicant's claim for &
g because he was dishelieved.

The magistrate's decision

E 8 The hearing before the magistrate took place on 18 Dacember 2002, before
R High Court of Australia in PEiimiff §157/2002 v Uommormeealth of Australic

Hinister for Immigration & Multiculraral & Indigenous Adfairs v NASS {2003]

Enrofile of and the enhance his claims to be, 5 refugee”. Accordingly, the Triny

§0 The Tribunal did not accept that the applicant had become a Christian while
Emember dishelieved the inciderts of persecution claimed by the applicant, finding that "overall [his}

FaGEE 18

FCA 4. Page3 of 13

Bre Starus of Refugees (a3 amended by the 1967 Profocol relating 1o the Status of ﬁgﬁ:gees), by
% cason of the fact that he had & well-founded fear of persecution on the groung of his religion,

grson as "the

o his arrest on two

- ccasions. On those oceasions, he said, he was interrogated and tortured; he rpganed his freedom

B5 The Tribunal accepted that, since his arrival in Australia, the applicant had ijvalved himself in

for himself the

nal held s 91R(3) of
must be digregarded
gvention reasons”,

still in Tran. The

i most aspects of his

eould not have

protection visa failed

the decision of the
[20031 HCA 2: 195

E power. Mr Karp put this submission on sliernative bases. First, he argued, th
§ Tribunal, in its review of the evidence and its findings and conclusions, amou
£ blatant and dishonest attempt to find against the applicant on the basis of lack
e Alternatively, Mr Karp said: "the Tribunal has been so recklessly indifferent t

power”. '

reference to the so-

E contending to the magistrate that the Tribunal faled to make a bona fde attefnpt to exercise its

actions of the
nted 1o "a concerted,
of credit"
5 (he accuracy or
Bpt 10 eXercise its

9 Raphael FM did not accept the first submission, of deliberate dishonesty, b
alternative submission, recklessness. In doing so, he referred to a table provi

10 The magistrate had a transeript of the evidence given by the applicant to

11 The magistrate acoepted the acouracy of Mr Karp's table in refation to ead
claimed by him, although he thought three of them were insignificant, in the

g not have affected the Tribunal member's understanding of the case put 1o hi
: However, the magistrate expressed concern that other errors might have affe

t he upheld the
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idence. Counsel for
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fery feast, recklesaness in the exercise of power.

g5 Pursuant to the notice of comention filed by his client, Mr Karp repeated t}i? first argument he
Bad put to Raphael FM. He submitted that, having regard (o the nature of the Fribunal's ervors, and
ghat they were all adverse o the applicant, “the Tribunal's conduct, seen cumulatively, amounts to
& concerted and dishonest attempt to impugn the respondent's credit”,

K

onclagions

RO The scheme of the Migration Act is to lezve to the Tribunal the task of detdrmining the facts of
ghe case. It 1s important that members of the Faderal Magisirates Court of Augiralia and members
©f this Court, who are called upon to undertake judicial review of s case, avoi substituting their
Pwn view of the facts of the case for those found by the Tribunal. Tt is not to the point that a
gragistrate or judge might think that a particalar factual finding of the Tribunall or even 2 number
Bl its findings, are of dubious merit or illogical.

#0 Nonetheless, there are occasions when it will be necessary for 3 court te lo
hdduced to the Tribunal and the Tribunal's factual findings, in order to assess ¢
particular case, of a ground of review that iz open 1o a party. | acoept Mr Karg's submission that a
Becision-maker who fails to act in good faith commits jurisdictional error. Thaf was made clear by
E5ibbs Tin Buck v Bavone, Whather the proposition be put in that form of i terms of the Hickman
bxception, it is clearly open to an agerieved party to obtain judicial review, ang have the Tribunal's
fecision set aside, if he or she can demonstrate lack of good faith,

ek gt the evidence
e availability, in the

+1 In SBES the Full Court (Tamberlin, Mansfield and Jacobson IT) summariseq the principles that

Boply to an allegation of bad faith. Omitting citations of suthority, their Honours said:
"First, an allegation of bad faith is a serious matter involving personalifault on the
part of the decision maker. Second, the allegation is not 1o be lighthy mbde ond must
be clearly alleged and proved, Third, there are morry ways irs which bad faith can
oceur andd it is not possible 1o give a comprehensive definition. Fourth, lthe presence
or absence of honesty will often be crucial; ..

The fifth proposition is that the circumstences i which the Court will find an
adminisirarive decision moker had not acted in good faith are rare andiextreme. This
is especially so where all that the applicant relies upon is the written rélisons for the
decision under review; ... '

Sixth, mere error or irrationality does not of itzelf demonstrate lack of food faith; ...
Bad faith is not to be found simply because of poor decision making, Itks a large step
fo Jump from a decision involving ervors of fact and law to a finding thgt the decision
maker did not wderiake its task in a way which involves personal critidism; ..

Seventh, errors of fact or law and logicality will not demonstrare bad {’az'zh n the
absence of other circumsionces whick show capriciousness; ...

Lighth, the Court must moke o decision as to whether or not beud fuith i§ shown by

inference from what the Tribunal has dove or failed to do and from the extent io

which the reasons disclose how the Tribunal approached its task; ...

Nirah, it is not necessary to demonstrate that the decision maker lnew the decision

waswrong. It is sufficieny to demonstrate recklessness in the exercise ofithe power;
E ¢




16/18/ 2683 1247 BN T PALLS CakRLIHNGFORD FaGE 1%

H

jiaisier for Immigration & Multicultural & Indigenous Affairs v NASS [20031[FCA 4., Page 8 of 13

B2 I accept this summary of principles. It is appropriate for me to apply it to the resolution of this
Fase. In doing so, it is important to make a distinction that may have been ovelooked in the
Bubmissions made to me by Mr Smuth,

b3 If the position in the present case was that the Tribunal member had merely made findings of
gact that Raphael FM thought to be incorrect or illogical, that would not have fustified his order
getting aside the Tribunal's decision. If the magistrate had taken that course, h¢ would have
Bsurped the Tribunal's role as final determiner of the facts. However, the magiftrate did not set
#side the Tribunal's decision because he disagreed with its factual conclusions, Jor anv of them, but
®ecause of the manner in which the Tribunal undertook itg fact ﬁndwg ﬁmﬁﬁc;E His decision was

pased, not upon a disagreement about the facts of the case, but upon his categbrisation of the
8 ribunal's conduct. That is consistent with the generally accepted notion of gobd faith, which is

Eoncermned with process rather than outcome,

4 As it seems to me, the critical question in this case is whether the magistrath was justified in
polding that the Tribunal acted recklessly in the exercise of its power. Were thk Tribunal's
rroneous statements about the applicant's evidence of such significance as to uppoTt an inference
pf recldessness, and therefore bad faith? Not every misstatement of evidence w support such an
Enierence. Even a careful decision-maker may err in Wis ¢r her account of the epidence. Bad faith is
Rot to be readily inferred. But if 2 material misstatement of svidence is sufficieptly egregious, or
fhe number of significant errors is sufficiently great, 2 reviewing court may be | mpel!et;i to infer
1af the decision-maker has set out deliberately to distort the svidence or (mot likely) has carried
put hiz or ber duties in a reckless manner,

&5 Raphael M appreciated the issue before him was one of degree. That s why be analysad each
bl the claimed errors and evaluared their significance. I have considered his anglysis and evaluation
ind have read the relevant portions of the transcript of evidence given to the ribunal. I sgree with
he magistrate's conclusion. | sez no reason to attribute deliberate dishonesty th the Tribunal
ember. Like Raphael FM, 1 think the likely explanation of the misstatements {5 that, by the time

Ehe Tribunal member set about writing his reasons, many maonths had sﬁiaysed ric relied on his
pemory of the applicant's evidence. That it proved faulty is not surprising. Wi
that the Tribunal member er apparently fatled to check his recollection of the app

Bt i3 surprising is
puainst either the tape Whﬂmng This might not have matidred if the member
#ad decided to accept the apphcant as a witness of truth and to accept the thnyst of the claims he

licant's evidence
8o omit to confirm the accuracy of his recollection of the evidence

R L
TR

for- =

¢6 I need not deal with all the misstatements. It is sufficient to note some of them. In so doing, [

& not making any findings of fact, or disagresing with any factual finding mage by the Tribunal. T
1 concerned only with the guestion whether it can properly be said that the Thibunal failed to
pply itself in a bona fide manner to its obligation to make findings gbowt the ficts of the case;
cluding, as a necessary incident, findings as to the applicant's credibility.

7 Central elements of the applicant's claim to the Tribunal were:
k) he became a Christian while still in Iran;
i) he practized his Christian religion in Tran, although in a w-key way: and

%ii) he was arrested, detained and tortured because of s Christian belief and gractice,
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Eonspiracy to overthrow the government, he had previously stated (in answerfo question 96) that
he was forced to sign this statement during a period of detention and mterrogdtion. After he came
(0 Australia, the applicant never made a claim that he was engaged in an intergational conspiracy to
Pverthrow the Iranian regime,

3 The importance of this misstatement of the applicant's evidence is indicated by the fact that it is
Ehe first example cited by the Tribunal member in support of his conclusion thit the evidence of the
mpplicant was "inconsistent, contradictory and implausible”.

£ In para 38 of his reasons, the Tribunal member said:
"He was asked if it was his evidence that confessing to the Komiteh that he was a
mortad and had evangelised Muslims meant that he would not go to coury and be
wilied as a mortad and proselytiser. He hod nothing to say”

B 5 The second of these two sentences suggests scknowledgement of srror. Hbwever, as Mr Smith
Foncedes, the stated question was never put, Mr Smith offered the following domment:

"There is, and cam be, mo direct evidence as io why the Tribunal set ouf a question
that way not asked, however, there is availoble an innocent explunatio Just as
readily as a sinister one. That is, thet the Tribungl had intended to as.
question and perhapy had notes of that gue: stiom without anything in reply (which
would explain why it thought gﬁmf ihe applicars had nothing 1o say to i But that with
the passage of time, it failed to realise r}mi therz was nothing written bpeouse there
in jaci had been no question.”

M6 The explanation may be tnnocent, in the sense that it gives no support 1o a puggestion of
ficiiberate distortion of the evidence by the Tribunat member. But it tends to shpport the
Buguestion of recklessness.

47 Similarly, in para 39, the Tribunal member said:
“The applicant was asked about his claim of becoming like o son to a Christion
Jamily. He was asked how that came about. He claimed that he went (0] Teheran and
met his reighbours. He was asked for specific details, but he was unable or unwilling
to do s0.”
8 In fact, as Mr Smith again concedes, the applicant was never asked for spepific details as to
how he met his nezghbcvum The exrhanga on the subject between the Tribunal member and the
:oplicant (questions 108 and 109) was as follows:

"Q- You say that you becamne friends with a Christion family and you Bheame like o
son to them?

A Yes
Q. How did that come abou?

A. When I moved to Youssefaba then I met my neighbours, Mr Sepi, Mohammed
Sepi, and Mrs Shahati and their daugﬁiam

#2 The member then moved o 2 diﬁ‘ﬁmm topig, the applicant’s church antenddhces,
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$0 In the same para 39, the Tribunal member said: "He was asked if it was hiskvidence that he had
gone 10 the church for one year and he said ves. Tt was put to him that he had bttended the church
prly about & times. He had nothing to say.”

f ! The applicart did say that he went to church for about a year. As is concedgd by Mr Smith, it
f/as never put to him that he had antended church only about 6 times.

b2 There are a number of other occasions, detailed by Raphael FM, in which the Tribunal said a
Matter was put to the applicant when it was not.

T para 4G of ks reasons, the Tribunal memb;:r said:

"The applicant was asked what he did at the church. He claimed that hé artended the
sermon session with Ms Shababi. He was asked what e did there, and e said bible
stugdies. He was unable or wawilling 1o give details, and appeared relucant 1o be
maore than general. He was asked what did bible studies entail. He claiteed they
studied the bible. He was unable or wrowilling to give @y details "

4 In fact the member asked two questions about this topic. By question 123, be asked "what did
Fou do when you went to church?” The applicant replied:

"Services, sermoms, the sermons sessions, don't kriow what thet, and that's - they're
the sessions that Mrs Shahabi introduced to me and they were very imtdresting and
Mr Edward was conducting them.”

S The following question and answer were as follows:

"0 What did you do there though? £4d you study the Bible, did you Hisfen 1o
sermons, did you discuss Christianity? What did you do there?

A. They were praising for the sermons and also one section of Bible wad selected, one
verse of it, and that would be discussed and be spoken sbout.®

F he member then passed to another topic.

¥O An important error of the Tribunal relales 1o the time when the applicant cliimed to have been
fvangelising. The relevant evidence is at question 143 o 145

Q. Now, you say that you confessed to evangelising Moslems when yoi were in Iran
and that you gave them o list of those people whom you did so io, Can You explain to
me just how you did thar? How would you evampelise someone in Iran

A. Well, I evangelised my own brother, my sister, my parents and my clbse friends and
when 1 say friends I don't mean colleagues or just people who I knew, imean close
friends which I knew and it's because T knew that evangelising is difficul} and i's a
dangerous thing to do in Iran.

Q. Did any of them convert to Chyristianity?
A And also my aunt, my suntie. My sister is a believer but she can't go fo any

churches and my auntie which I've spoken to her from the beginning on fmany
nccasions, she's also a believer and at the moment I'm warking on my bipther.
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(3. How are you doing that since vour brother is in Iran?

sy, that T have to say, [ stili do that because 1, T believe now, T a beli
believe that even if it's two words I still have to say those words and to
be careful, he says that there are sort of - it's an expression - that there
are betfer than us, meaning that thére could be people stening to us,
like with my guntie she says that Did you go to the suli today, meaning

she can't say 1t clearly.”

giuestion that includes the limitation "when you were in Iran”. In para 44 of hi

brother in Iran. It became apparent that his claim of evangelising was

asked {f he had been baptised in Irony, and he said no.”

| B8 | need not go on. It is apparent the Tribunal member made no real antempt

Enalvse the evidence given to him by the applicans. Even on critical lssues, he
noouracy of his recollection. In the result, he impugned the applicant's credibil
§wn faulty recollection of hig evidencs.

b9 Before parting with the matter 1 should say something about that part of M

;;'- that the applicant said "he would be killed in Iran without doubt i he wi
Claimed that he bad been twice arrested, tortured and detained by reason of h

ghe applicant may have exaggerated his likely punishment, if retumned to lran,
y ribunal from making its own assessment about the likelihood of persecution.
flaimed to have twice been detained and tortured in Iran, by reason of hig Ci

ikely to happen again, if the applicant were returned fo Iran; and, if s0, wheth
persecution for a Convention reason.

PDisposition

$0 The appeal should be dismissed with costs. The order of the magistrate wil
Pl need to be reconsidered by the Tritumal, Having regard to the history of t
ghe President of the Tribunal will direct that the reconsideration be undertakes
ember of the Tribunal.

brister for Emmigration & Multicultural & Indigenous Affairs v NASS {2003)

and every time that I talk with him, gvery time [ talk with him he points

wearing the suit {0 go to, you know, to church she means but she can't
that Pray for us as well when you go there and things like that, she savs

e 7 Mystifyingly, the member ignored the fact that the applicant's first answer »

his family on the phone from Australia. He claimed that every times he
Brother By phone he tells him to believe, but that the phones are Hstend

1 which he asserted a contradiction in the apphicant's claim (see para 22 abovd)

fo Christianity and then refeased” There may indeed be some inconsistency bej
though it would be necessary to consider all the sircumstancas before coming
ronclusion about that. However, the Tribunal was not sitting as an examiner i

FCA 4, Page 12 of 13

A. Every ume that [ have 2 phone contact with him even i #t's two words that [ can

ver now and 1
convey them,
ut, he says 1o
¢ people who
know, the

=

government lstening to us and it might not be teresting for vou but 1w'¢ just
interesting to say that on Sundays every time I speak - T have telephone konversation

ere you
y or she says
chemn because

esponded to 2
4 regsons he said:

"The applicant was asked how he went about evangelising some cne infren. He
claimed that 1t was his brothers, porents mud close friends because it wy
in Iran. He was asked if any one converted. He claimed thar he was a B
conld not go 1o the church, that his auny war a believer, and that he wo

15 dangerous
fiever, but he
ked o his
Freaking to
contacts kis

i 0, He was

o establizsh and
id not check the
y by reference to his

4

Smith's submission
; the contradiction
€ to return but also
#ing been converted
een thess claims,
1o a definite

logic. The fact that
g:d not absolve the
The applicant

d
£

Lt

hrfstian faith. If the
[ribunal accepted the truth of those statements, it needed then to consider wh

ther this would be
T this amnounted to

stand. The matter
& mattar, I presume
by a different
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INFORMATION FROM LEONARD KARP

Leonard Karp was represanting an Bangladeshi man — NASN of 2002 v The
Minister for mmigration.

The case was due to 9o the the Federal Court the wesk baginning 27" May 2003,

The alleged errars of the Tribunal were the samsa as for NAES ekcept there were
more of them. -

The Minister agreed {0 settle NASN 2 days before the case was kue 1o ba heard
on the basis that ths matter retum to the Tribunal.

Fe NASE The Tribunal Member took about six and a half mopths to make a
Decision. He obvicusly didn't go back io the tape whils making his decision. He
referred 1o questions he said he asked and didn't and to answers he said NASS
had made which he hadn't. He misintarprated NASE's mmm%ts and make
False statements like “The applicant refused to answer™,

Qur concern here is that a Member who acts in such & manner¥s allowed to
continue making decislons that could affect whether a person lives or dies.
(The Member concerned in both the NASN and NASSE cases was Roger Gibson.
We wonder how many other applicants have had similar decisions But have nof had
the benefit of a barisler ar someone to check the tape of their RRTihearing against
the Member’s dacision.)
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LIST OF TRIBUNAL MEMBERS

All Member appoimments are in effect urtil 30 jure 2004, This listf includes a

numiber of Members whose appointrnents ke effect 2fer 30 jure

Principal Member
Steve Karas, OAM

Q17Q772004

Deputy Principal Member

Kerry Boland, Alg

Senior Members
NSW

Paula Cristoffanini
Susan Mcllibatton

Full~time Members

New Socuth Wales

. Wendy Berkley

John Bleunt
Futh Cheetham
Roger Fordham
Peter Gacs
Roger Gibson
Pamela Gutman
Luka Hardy

jack Hoysted
Rodney inder
Chris Keher
Dinco Kelleghan
Ruth Layton

fan Lincoln

chr Lynch
Philippa Mddtosh
uiiet Morms
Louise MNicholks

rene O'Conned

DHO772001

Victoria
GHO7/2001  Adolfo Gentile, A/g
SHO71200 |
Appointed
OHO7/2001 K Rosser
DUO712001  Shahyar Roushan
DUO72000 Giles Short
QHIGT12001 Peter Thomson
010712001 jill Tochey
Q072001 Paul White
GIAOZ12001  Stephen VWhitlam
OUO72001  Robert Wilson
CHO712001  Sue Zelinka
DiA02001 . -
GHO7/2001  Victoria
Q712001
01AQ7/2000  Kim Boyd
G107/2002 Grastme Brewer
QH/Q7/2001 julie Gould
QLo7/2000 | Marget Holmes
Q1/07/20G1 - Brendan Kissane
M200T Eiazabeth Lee
OUA77:001  Alan Moller
GLO72001  Stefan Romanie
QI/Q7/2008  JohnVrachnas

2002,

01/G772001

Appointed
D /0772001
3 1/10/2001
01 /07/2001
D 712001
D 1/07/2007 -
) 1/071200 ]
D 1/10/2001
HIC712002
D 1/07/2001

Appointad
) 0712001
0 1/G712001
1/07/20G ]
1 /3712001
e1/07/2001

/1002001
| /07/2002
11102001
110712001

Refugee Review Tribuml Annual ﬂ@%ﬁ: 2oat - 2002
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A FOEMER member of
the bedy responsible for
reasiessing  rejgcred
refuges gpplications has
claimed he and col-
leagues were politicslly
prassured over thed
decisions. :

Bruce Haigh, a Refs-
gee Review Tribunal
member for fve vesrs
from 1995 and 2 former
diplomat, said there was
ne directive igsusd o
members the
stattorily independenr
beard, Dur membears
would be twld if “the
tImmigrarion] sninisier
[Philip Hoddocl] wasn'e
bappy” about certain
decisions,

Pressure was exerted
through inforsmsl “chars”
and meetings with the
eribuntal's senior member
after meetings with Mr
Rusddork. he said

“Iris supnosed w be an
independent tribuns?,
bue it s aoct” Mr Haigh
said,

“People are appoingsd
te the ribunal on
$90,000 plus cars and
other petks and if they
want o have their term
renewed, they end up
zgrecing with cerrain
directions and influences

He said char although
he had no evidence of
“palm-greasing”  in
retuen for visas, refugee
ptaces had become so
tight thar the systemn was
Qpen ™ arruption.

Mr Buddocks nse of
his ministerial discrevon
£y intervene in cages had
batome more powesful
sver the years, Mr HMaigh
sand.

Wt e vav s veal

;
of

als

Tetdeparrment and
¥rer for instance,
 ware looking at
Fast Tinforsze refirgesns
= has  besp
corruptgn in the depart-
meny folever?

Both ghe Government
and Cippamion have heen
waeks Fith clemms and
courserciumne sbour cash
paymeng  from  inter
natonal fbusinessen for

Folics isfvestiganng an
alleged $EE20,000 pay-
ment by Hugirive Filiping

iSrwan, & pro-
minent Fydney businsss-
¥ close friend of
§r Ruddeck,
Dppagitinn imimi-
gration § spokeswoman,
Julia Gifjard claimed the
imrge pafment was made
o Mr Klsrwan o lobby
My Rugdock to look
favouraply on Tan's
rmmigraion applivation,
Tan, pvaotad in the
Philippiges for corporate
fraud, whs granved Aust-
ralian {itizenshiz last
year by Mr Ruddock
within wpeeks of meking
2 F12p00 persénal
donation) to the mings-
wry eldbrion canpaien
fund,
Mr  faisrwani  has
veharnetly denied re-
eefving homey from Tan,
Figurgs shaw Mr Rod.
dock hagused his powers
of intefvenrion 1751
times sfrce becoming
Immugration Minister in
1996 - gk average of 250
smes a fearn as omch ay
dhree @ e times more
than hif three prede-
CEESTLS, ‘

Mr Rudidock could noe
< tAntacted  f

fie I
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Bue process demands judicisl review of far-
reaching sdministrative daaisions.

How Australia deals with those who seek asylum
here has become g difficult and Jivisive lssus, The
process of deciding whether 3 person should be

appiicant before i, He has ordered the tribunal to
review giresh s familds case, saying the Thunal
failed o fully tarvaes slaims mede by the
applicants. Mis decision calls into question 59 other

Aedvrthad vt
o Bt investments
iR Best Locations
Home > Opinion > Editorial > Aricle '
F BRliOnS '
g . Also iy Opinfon
Asylum seckers
R .!.A _ “ rgn scandal & treat fo democracy
have a right to be
3000 ~ A test that George Bush Means 1o
» B IARY )
» Bch . GO h ea rd pask
g i R o# fagthe BIe
' '”“;‘T'“,_'f ment June 10 2003 fomorrow?
» Bhultin

Can we afford the Parkville Games

villane?
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sehoole i :

No friumeh in
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2 permitted to remain in Australia, aven though this
ghrsanal finance may ivolve lsies of human rights, &s fargety an How the systém abuses the abusad
R e admirestrative one. Fortnsately, such decisions
ducation remain subject to Judicisl review. In 2 stingin )
ey rebuke to the Refuges Review Tribunal, Justice The Senafe &@n't broke: now watch
ol bacrine ’t Richard UTu5Er 51 His Fegeral ol has Howsrd fx i
rBme daliven copdetniied ns taiure to adequately mvestigate
, glaims of perseculion by an ranian family The green, afeen prass of home

Crsan o aegzlev? t's 2 jok=

choice

v 5 TR i
Rywonds %

ty':s sdiion; am

similar tribiza! decisions. The family are members

of the Sabian Mandaean faith, which regards John ful battle

ahor's wast

11 s

8 guiicle

htlo /fworw theaes com a/farticles/ FONVNANG/ INEANTDINTEATE kel

the Baptis! as their prophet, There are only about
20,000 Sablan Mandaeans woridwide. Most bve
glong the border between Irag and ran. The family
it question flad Iran, where they daim to have
been sublect to significant persecution at the
hands of the Shifie Musliim majority. Many Sablan
Mendaeans have besn detained in Australia as
flegal immigrants. The Federal Goverminant has
refused (o accept that they are freated an "infidels™
or persacutad. i has acknowledged that
Mandasans are sublect to discrimination,

This is not the first time a judge of the Federal
Gourt has lambasted the Refugse Raview
Tribunal. The tibuns! was establshed in 1283 o
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provide an indepandent review of declsions made
by immigration oificers. Where refuges status is
rafused, 3 case may be brought before the irbunal
to ansess whether an applicart meels refugee
criteria laid down by United Nafions convertion.
Tribunal members inchude lawysrs, public sarvenis
and refugee advocates. They normally sit alone. : hoiding jhe left fo accourt
Of 5640 apphications completed by the tribunal iast :

year, It affimed the departmeant's decision in 5091
cases. What Jusios Cooper's comments appest
to highiight ks a falling on the part of the ibunal to
adequately investigate at least some of tha claims
of appiicants before ff. This s 2 charge that has
pesn leveliad st the tisunml before by the sourt, In L . .
turn, the Federal Cowrt - 1o which some cases may v g hit back hard againg
be taken on appeal - has been criticised for frying
to subvert govemment policy, overstapping its
mandate 1o review cases an the besis of lawend a8 Howard Ing new Mengiag?
general hosHfiity to fibunal decisions. Declslons of

the court faell are subject to raview by the High :

Court, which confifms the process of jidicial roan ¢ Benplex. e fie Svdney
review, Where abuses of human ang legsd rights

mre at stake, the danger of extinguishing rights by N .

fiat ralses kksuss beyond normal administative MMW
purview, It is proper for a judicial review to probe Senafe reform?

desply into such maters. Forcing the retum of

a5 seskars, parhaps o face persecition, _
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baen using i - Incregaing the
number of visss issued under
hils diseretion,

“He (Ruddock! osn play the
rile of the godfather” says
Bruce Halgh, & former member
of the Refuges Review Tribunal
and diplomad,

Under Seclion 417 of the
Migraiion Act. the minister has
the power 1o intervene to grant
visas Lo asylum-seskers rejected

THRE tribunal operated on bh
basiz thal only 20 per sent of
beople wha came before it
shouid be glven refuges stptus”
gays Halgh, a iribunal member
from 1985 to 2000,

"1f you went over the 20 per
cenit you'd be counselled by the
senior member and told your
decizion-making was 2 bhit

PR

by Austrglian National niver-
sity law  graduate Johanna
Stration shows that the nume
ber of Lebanese granted visge
by Ruddock outstrips visss 1o all
athier countries,

Indeed, Afghanistan and Irag
do not make the 1op 18 couniries
favoured by the minister
although mast ssylum-seskers
comse from those bwo countries,

“Orprer fhe VERrs, (e
migration legislation hag
become tore and more Sigde
oriented, and the powers of
ordinary departmental offleors
have diminished,” says Mary
Crock. a senlor eoturer in lnw af
Bydney  Thlversity and the
author of several books on refu-
gee lxw,

“The end result has been in
funnel the uliimaie power over
visas {0 the ministar, The foous
of 80 mueh power in one person
inevitably crestes problems of
perception and leaves the SY5-
tem  vuineranle o manipg
lation."

Now Ruddock’s longstanding
connections with Kisrwsni are
under close serutlny from &
Labor Party determined to
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prave foul play. They are not
there yet but, with dogged front-
pencher Jullp Gillard leading
the charge. the Oppasition iz
hoping for a prized soslp before
Lo dong

The ALF bhelieves Kisrwani is
the key to what i is calling ihe
caeh-for-visas soandal The saga
haz plaved out in parlament for
the past four wesks, with Lahor
targeting Kisrwani and Rad-
dock, whose ministeria] ztaw.
ardship of the sensitive Immi-
gration oortfolio has won him
sorme pisladits,

“Thea end result has
been to funnel the
ultimate power over

visas to the minister’

fary Crpgk
Law erhirer

Labor olsims Kisrwani has
exploited his Influenoe  with
Ruddork, obfaiming favourabie
treatmeant on immisration visag
for those Drepared 1o Day,

And now, Just 4 month after
thess allegations fivat surfaced,
the Ansiralian Federal Folice
hitd been asked to investigate
clairas that Tan. charged with
the biggest stock market rwin.
dle iz Filipine history, said Kisr-
watid $220,000 to loblyv the minis-
ter for favoursble treatment
over Tan's mmigration stabys

Kilerwani “shsolntely” denies
%, "I have sgever accepted
0000 or any other money,
from Dante Tan to secore hirn g
visa Or for any oiher reason”

Labor's imsnigration spokes-
woman fred off a lefier ves-
ferday 0 AFP Commissioner
Mick HKeeity. CGillard sgvs see-
£ral Sturces have toid her ghout
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the alleged $22000 payment
from Tag — whe fled Austrziia
lase gverghres weeks ago and iz
now unsdersiond to be in hiding
i Europg.

Gillard} told the AFP an
informarg had stepped forward
angd wasiprepared o be Inier-
viewed, ut  the anonywons
“deep-thgost”  waned  guse-
anfees of protection because,
CGillard  éxplained, they were
“woncerngd about their personal
security fand the secority of
their  fabnily  membery  and
friends™.

CGillarddy who has besn one of
Smon C‘gan“s best performers,

iz stakingher reputation on this
poditical gitchhunt sgaine Hud-
dreie, s clbse glly of Jolhin How-
ard.
Az shegsees 4, the facts are
straightfgraward: “Mr Karim
Higrwanifhaz heen involved in a
series of rhatters whers Minister
Baddock fips changed his mind
or acted Bn & way to advance
peoph: thil Karim Kisrwani has
made reprasentations ahoul,®
Born ig the southern Leba-
nese oifyl of Jemsine i 1939,
Elsrwanif emigrated to Aust
ralig in 1957, Twelve vears fater,
he  estalgished the Jet Seb
anpany in Hareis Park,

st have never besn
plained,

TORILS
properiy g

befriendigg — and fallng out
with — g@oliticians from hoth
zides,

: Chield, the controversial
irgster in the Carr Gov-
ernment, s & former businees
mae. Bufthe two had a falling.
out, gppagently over g $100,000
g that Bisrwand claimed had
not been fepaid,

Trespite] Misrwani breaking
hig szilenck last night to chal
lenge Lahgr's claim he had pocle
eted FI0AM from Dante Tan, i
will not be hiz finsl remarks in
this  “cagn-for-eisas” saga if
Laabor hadits way.
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? i the protaction visa system for asylum ssekers in Australia.

¥ objectives which emphasise that for most refugees the appropriate res
! provide interim protection until they can return homa in safety, ' Mr Ry
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| Changes To Protection Visa System

Indigenous
Affairs

! The Minister for Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs, Bhilip Ruddock,

roday announced a package of regulation changes to enhance consisteney and integrity

The existing Temparary Protection Visa (TPV) arrangemants applying t

protection visa appiication after arriving in Australla lavefilly.

The change will align Australia’s protection arrangements with interna

were only granted temporary visas.

L anzuthorised

8 orrivals have been broadened 5o that they will now also apply to peoplg who make &

1 This change will not affect existing protection visa applicants. Nor will it affect paopla
 who are resettled in Australia under the Offshore Mumanitarian Prograf
§ arrivals wili continue to be covered by the TPV arrangements.

N Unlawhad

ional protection
honsea 15 to
ddack said.

E It also reflects the situation between 1589 and 1994 whan people reguiring protection

reseftiement program,’ Mr Ruddaock said,

"Where TPV holders are no lenger in need of Australia’s protection, the

protection before conferring permanant protection and stay.

§ Al peopie owed refugee protection by Australia will continue to receiveg protection.

¥ The regulations will also enable around 2,400 TPV holders fo become &igible for
permanent protectian if they are found o hava an ongoing need for prptection. These
TPV holders did not lodge an application for a further protection visa before legisiative

| changes in 2001 preventad them from accessing a permanent protectign visa in future,

. These balarced changes will ansure Austraiia's onshore protaction arrgngemants arg
' consistent and fair, ang will assist in upholding the integrity of our hur

anitarian

r piaces are

§ reassigned to the Humanitarian Program to resettle refugess and othels of concern who
§ are in the greatest need.

Recent exparience with changing country situations and new security poncerns clearly
show the vaiue of being able to reassess whathar a person has a contijuing need for

The changss will also reduces incentives for the misuse of sur onshoreprotaction

12/09/2003
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forovisions by pecple who have abandoned protection elsewhere becausd they would
prefer to live in Australia,” Mr Ruddock said.

i The introduction of the TPV in October 1999 had proved to be 2 succassful too! in
forotecting Australia’s capacity 1o contributs 1o international efforts 1o hglp refugees,

}The new regulations aise inciude a power for me to allow people who agived lawfully,
and who are in nead of protection, to have immediate acress to a Permgnent Protection
{Visa, where this is in the public interest,’ Mr Ruddock said.

€ A third change would provide the ability for the grant of TPVs and Tempporary
| Humanitarian Visas for shorter periods than fhose currently stated in thes reguiations.

lThis removes the problem of visas expiring at different times for family membars who
Fhad arrived separately, and wiil help them to be considerad for further ;gmtactécra a5 3
g group,

28 August 2003

f Madia contact: Steve Ingram, $5418 278 715
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